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EERTHRERNRO 2 EE

RZZBZFNF=ZA=1—R  ARAEFRITRARR AR RS EAR AR (RESRAEGED([E
7 MRGRG] D FBXVER 2R ) < Bt MR SESF A () IRIFE S LR RHIEXVERET &
FEINBMUAMEARBRELHERZIMARAB (BT 2BakER (BRRIEZESF ARG
PIERGENZEEHREAREERB ZREHER) « () RIFEEH M EEDIFE3525RE LA
AZfGHIEz BRMAzERZRER  R(ORBFSFLHRA( EHRADAE LTARERE
TRHFRHZFETABEBAAR R MRz EmRERIT

() ZATEREE0.0ETZBER ([BH])

s p BB RELEE
G BREBAESLREEEI L (%)
2IPRrES A fEA 391,624,000(L) 1.75
(r2isk4 1) 118,500,000(5) 383

L:AfE S KE

Wiat : 7E3%391,624,0000R B (77 + 273,124,000 IR 17 FH B 56 4 Bas A + 551 118,500,0008 IR 17 #5351 T /6 Bk & B 2 AR 5 1R
RE[EB]) - RIFGREBZAER - FEFRF=ANAGTLZ BEE W B LECAEHERGUEERZIELBA
190,000,00068 %17 - BEE# 5 H)#TT - B (CIBLE(E5330,000,0008T « XGFHIEBRARGR - EZERE=ANA
Tz 2 264 °

RE-BENF=H="+—HE ZTHKEE71,500,00008%17 - Hi=EEZ HsrR 172 H 75118500,00008 817

(b) FEMRAE

EE NG
BEEREHE BRTRA

(PR EE) HEROEE BMABDE(%)

Bl5eE 135000000 EzHEAA 135,000,000 405
RESLE 95000000 EzSHEBA 95,000,000 2.85
KIEBESEE 10000000 EzHEHA 10,000,000 030
TNEEAE 10000000 E&mBEAA 10,000,000 030
HeEksE 9240711  BIEAA 9,240,711 028
HHEEEEE 1700000 EZHEAA 1,700,000 005
e 1700000 EzHEAA 1,700,000 0.05
E-BiEt 1000000 EmE#EAA 1,000,000 0.03

263,640,711 263,640,711

WiiE : ZSBREDREARAR —FF=F A NAFRNZBREABRSL - BIFEATRTXBRE Tt TEER
TTIERIREBR (7
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B EXFAEEEN  RZFFNF=ZA=1T—0  ARAZEFRITHAMBERN AR A HERHE
B (B S R EEGIBEXVE 2 BE) 2B - RO RESFTHEA IR IERS () RIFE SRS
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B
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BIAR
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HRERARY HUERATE
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9320095862018 7 . 1500000 .
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562,400,711 3,000,000
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K (b) IR IR 75 S U E IR0 5 3525 R E A FI AR

EES MR GROIB R

AL

NAEFHETEFRR S ZIZETRIN

FHEMBRET Z2EA

REZ-ZEhE
ZA=t-HLt

TENE
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HREEAKH AT
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Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Gas Holdings
Limited (the“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 3 to 108, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at March 31, 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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BRERAR([ERAR ) RENBAR(SKEBI EEE )
ZIEEUBRE AN BERRBER=ZSZNGE
=“A=t+—HNREEEEREXR %&E%El&%ﬁz
?éuﬁzﬁ#@% RERSEBHRREERETER - U
FESH BRI E R H b R E o

BEAREFRBEREEESHMASRMHENE LN
BE R R BB R RERGDRE R B ' A5
BREGAVBHRE - GEERER  BEfkE#E
HBIRHL AR AT HRERA B RRAAEN AR
ZH] - LAEBA ISR AR AN AR RF Sk SR T B 2R
BEARBRERL  RENEBEENSER - JZB
MTMEHA RN & RHAET

AT EERBREATHEZHGSMBRRIELE
R WRBAFREQRDEFEOKRR AEREABELN
IRERERE © BRULIASH - RITHREE A BIEEMLA
& o ATB A ERAREENAT  HEAEMAL
BENFREREME - ATERBEBESFE AR
BB B ERBEITER o ELERIZRKAITEST
BRERE  WREIRNTES  NAEEEHESE
P HIMERRE TF A EMEARERERAL ©

B RITIR T A Bfr & B R sl & 78
RFTERBNBIZRE o FTEENRFBURARZEAN
RIHIET - BIETE B ERGE R AR M B AR & IS 3R
REAERERBMMER - EHEZ SRR - %
%&Eﬁi%)ﬂﬁi%“ﬂfﬁ%%&ﬁfﬁ'ﬁ”iimﬁ\ ke & B %5
WTABBA R AEIES - URETEENEZIZF - B
ERER TE’UWﬁB%I%IIB’MI PERER c ERANBE
TEEEMEANGTBERNEG @ RAELA ST
HETEEY - URFTERE M BERROEERIIHR S
o

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRIZERAER AT  Financial Report 2009 B 153k &



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2009 and of the Group's profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

July 21,2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

Nl

For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—FEZTAF=A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EEThE —ET)N\E
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE T FHT
(Restated)
(&31)
Revenue ON 7 6,323,823 2,552,075
Cost of sales SHERK A (4,894,474) (1,805,956)
Gross profit EF 1,429,349 746,119
Other income H s 9 225,756 188,726
Distribution costs DR (330,414) (110,296)
Administrative expenses THRAX (468,475) (342,556)
Change in fair value of investment properties REYE 2 N EE 5,726 85,825
Change in fair value of held-for-trading FHEEBRE A THERE)
investments (23,843) (1,232)
Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale RAFHEZIREZ
investments AR (14,947) =
Impairment loss on amounts due from customers EREFAEHTIRERIELZ
for contract work REEE (36,864) (79,623)
Allowance for trade and other receivables B S IR TR R E
JE W BR TR (53,883) (57,190)
Finance costs s &R 10 (409,800) (240,029)
Change in fair value of derivative financial TESMTIAZ AT EES
instruments 30 (366,320) (166,384)
Discounts on acquisition of an associate, a jointly WkgEt = A a] - HEEE
controlled entity and business BRREB2IE 11 236,262 40476
Share of results of associates L AN e 20 12,884 138013
Profit before taxation BRE A 205,431 201,349
Taxation i1 12 (71,472) (13,778)
Profit for the year ANEE 5 F 13 133,959 187,571
Attributable to: B8
Equity holders of the Company RATRE 103,679 141,059
Minority interests DR 30,280 46,512
133,959 187,571
Dividends paid BIIRE 15 39,997 38619
Eamnings per share GREF 16
Basic HA HK3.11 cents3&l HK4.39 centsi& Ll
Diluted #E HK2.93 centsi#l HK3.85 centsi# Ll

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

Financial Report 2009 174} &



At March 31,2009 R=ZEZNF=A=+—H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Deposits for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary
and an associate

Loan receivable

Amounts due from associates

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories
Amounts due from customers for contract work
Trade and other receivables

Derivative financial instruments
Amounts due from associates
Prepaid lease payments
Held-for-trading investments
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Amounts due to customers for contract work
Taxation
Bank and other borrowings —
due within one year
Convertible bonds

ERBEE

REM=

e S

AN E KA

NN £

AR EZRE

[k

HitEAE

WEEIZE - B R
RiFEE

W R B B X A Bt = R )
Z TR

FEURE 7R

JRE U S ' X R RIR

BIEBIHAE

MENEE
8
B E P Z & TR
B o RARSR R A A
FEW AR
TESRTA
JEWES 2 R 0R
BNEEFIE
FIEEEKRE
EHERRITER
RiITEFRAS

mEEE

B 5 e 5 Bk e B At FE (SRR IR

TESRITAE
BRRFz2E&HITEFRIE
A
RITREMEE —

R—F A H
AR ES

Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less current liabilities

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZR AR AT

nE(BE)EEFHE
BEERMB AR
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Note

M=

17
18
19
20
22
23
24

44(i)
26
31
39

27
28

29
30
31
19
32
33
33

30

28

35
38

2009
=
HK$000
FRT

295,127
9,239,775
869,075
1,006,332
41,995
633,620
320,297

276,197

63,218
68,966
56,890

12,871,492

540,898
219,993

1,285,698
1,261
243,250
16,173
11,544
847,759
2,048,698

5,215,274

2,603,313
782
121,743
51,733

3,103,855

5,881,426
(666,152)

12,205,340

2008

T N\F
HK$'000
FHT
(Restated)
(&31))

219,100
5,566,276
397,301
214,291
18,376
429,422
318,821

128,492

566,988
15,000

34,203

7,908,270

285,530
283,426

935,715
10,976
158,617
6,878
42,074
164,597
1,510,044

3,397,857

1,348,652
4,264
12,247
15,072

157,061
14,334
1,551,630
1,846,227

9,754,497



At 31 March 2009 R=ZZhF=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EZAEF T N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
= FEx FHET
(Restated)
(8731)
Equity i ey
Share capital &N 36 33,336 33314
Reserves e 3,189,934 3,107,258
Equity attributable to equity holders of the FEBANRIRR 2 s
Company 3,223,270 3,140,572
Minority interests DEIR R 794,001 545,435
Total equity HmER 4,017,271 3,686,007
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 30 360,087 =
Amount due to a minority shareholder of FEAT BT R A R D ERAR R R IA
a subsidiary 37 356,591 339,092
Bank and other borrowings WITREMER
— due after one year —R—F &5 H 35 7,194,067 5,624,454
Convertible bonds AIRRR(E 5 38 14,823 =
Deferred taxation IRIETIIE 39 262,501 104,944
8,188,069 6,068,490
12,205,340 9,754,497
The consolidated financial statements on pages 3 to 108 were approved and FIBEFIBEZAEVBHREACHEETER-ET
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on July 21, 2009 and are signed on NEFELAZ T —BIERBEERTIH TIESEREK
its behalf by: BE
XUYING LIU MING HUI
#7E 2l8eE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EF

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRIZERAER AT  Financial Report 2009 B 153k &



Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity
MEERRER

For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—FEZTAF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRANARR
Employee
share-based Investment ~ Properties
Share Share compensation Translation ~revaluation revaluation  Special  Statutory Accumulated Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds profits Total  interests Total
Eakt REEf MEEH HERR

Brx  BAER  HMER EXRE 0 BR  BR  HEGR  imEE mNE 0 & R 4
HSOOO RSO HKSODD  HODO0 MO HKSODD  HOD0 MO0 RSO0 HOO0 HS0  HKS00
Thn AT TAr  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEr TR TEL TER TEn

At April1, 2007 RZF5tEMA-A 0% 1442638 42875 119592 (78%9) 1601 1602 15621 T1157 2358549 3426 2692805
Increase in far value TRLERE

of avalable-for-sale AHEEN

investments - - - - 591 - - - - 91 - 591
Exchange gain

ontranslation - - - 164,098 - - - - - 164,098 35,159 199,257
Net income recognised

directlyin equity B = = = 164098 591 = = = = 164689 35159 199848
Release upon disposal REETHLE

of avalable-for-sale RERRE

investments - - - - (1144) - = = = (1144) = (1,144)
Profitfor the year TR = = > - - - - - M9 M9 4651 18757
Total ecogised KERRINAGE

incore for the year - - - 164,098 (553) - - - 141,059 304604 81671 386,275
Recognition of ERRALH 2Bl

equity-setted a3

share based

payments - - 6458 - - - - - - 6458 - 6458
Brercise of share fitEmE

options 570 41140 - - - - - - - 41710 - 41710
Beerclse of subscription fiEeEg

rights 0 786 - - - - - - - 78% - 78%
Conversion of ERTakES

convertible bonds 171 458262 - - - - - - - 450974 - 450974
Acquisiions of YEHEAR

subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 82391 82391
Captal contrbution HEAR)URRLE

from minority

shareholders of

subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 91815 91815
Acquisiion of EENBAER

additional interest

ina subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 429) 429)
Dividends paid by HEARERS &

subsidiares to RE2RE

its minority

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (44269) (44269)
Dividends paid BfifkE S = = S S S S = (38619) (38619) = (38619)
Transfer £ - - - - - - - 62073 (620m) = = =
AtMarch 31, 2008, R-EE\E=A=1-H

asrestted &) B 190986 933 236N (8452) 1601 160 T TSI M0STL 455 366007
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity ZR &= g1k

For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—FEZNF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRALABRR

Employee

share-based Investment ~ Properties
Share Share compensation  Translation revaluation revaluation
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve

ESRe REEH  MREM
B&  BBEE HMEE EXGE i e
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKO000  HKSOOD  HKSOO  HKSO00
Tht TEn  Thr  TAr  TRr T

Special  Statutory Accumulated Minority
reserve funds profits Total  interests Total
HERR

KHRE teER  ZaA it i it

HKYODD  HKSODD  HKSOO0 MO0 HKSO0  HKSO00
TAL  ThRL  TEL TR TEL  TER

At April 1,2008, H-FF)\$mA-B
asrestated (&5

3314 1949866 49333 28369 (8452) 1601

1602 T76% 1194 3140572 45435 3686007

Decrease i fair vale of RLERE,

avalable-orsaleinvestments AT ERD = - = = (6:499) =
Impaimentlossrecognised  BERM L EREL

onavallable-orsale HEEE

Investments - - - - 14947 -
Exchange gainon

translation Eiha - - - 1863 - -

i . = (6495) - (6:499)

= = = 14947 = 14947

= = = 1863 11130 12993

Netincome recognised BRRNEREDL

diectlyn equity LNt - - - 1863 845 - - - - 10315 11,30 21445
Profitfor the year KEREH - - - - - - - -6l 103679 080 133%9
Totalrecognised income KERRINAGE

forthe year - - - 1863 8452 - - - 103679 1139%4 41410 155404
Recognition of equitysetted  REERRALZH 2

share based payments OIS - - 6.981 - = = = = = 6981 = 691
Brercise of share options fiEERE 2 1698 - - - - - - - 170 - 1720

Acquistions of subsidiaries ~ WEHEAA - - - - - -
Capital contrbution from HEAR)UBRRLE

minority shareholders of

Subsiciaries - - - - - -
Dividends paid by subsiciaries ~ MBARRM )8

toitsminority hareholders ~ REZRE - - - - - -

- = = - 240042 1004

= = = = 14175 14175

= = (@r0er)  @7061)
- - (39997) (39997 - (39997)

Dividends paic EfffR& - - - - - -
Transfer a2 - - - - - - - 34216 (34216) - - -
At March 31,2009 R-EENE=A=1-H 331951564 %314 285553 - 1601 1602 111910 781390 323200 794001 4017211

Note: The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The statutory funds are reserves required by the relevant laws of the People’s
Republic of China, other than Hong Kong (the "PRC"), applicable to the Company'’s
PRC subsidiaries.

GG

REE 2 FHIR MBI EA R R PR B KT B A R 2 kD
EEERABBROR -ANEF LR ETEEEA
HRKENBARMET 2RO 2 EE=EZE%E

EERESDHEARKMBE(THE] - st s T8
BB ERRARR D EE AR 2B MEGIFTHRER
Bzl#EE -
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For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—FEZTAF=A=+—HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Change in fair value of investment properties
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments
Impairment loss recognised on
available-for-sale investments
Impairment loss on amounts due
from customers for contract work
Allowance for trade and other receivables
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Interest expense
Share of results of associates
Discount on acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

Discounts on acquisition of an associate, a jointly

controlled entity and business
Share-based payments
Interest income
Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments
Net exchange gain

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease in amounts due from customers
contract work

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables

Decrease in held-for-trading investments

(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables

Increase in amounts due to customers for
contract work

Cash from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

R
B A% Bt A1)
REATHE2E
REWEZ NFER
HEAHHEZREL
FU R
BRI HEE 2 RE
RERE
BT P Z & TRHRIA
BIEEE
B 5 RARR R A YRR 2 B
M BERREBZITE
BETRNAEHRIR
BB
HEME - BFELREER

SR
i A WNETE i
SEREIE A R 2 TR

WisEtE AR - REESEE
IES P

PABAR FE R AT 5R

FlEHA

TESBTAZ AFEES

BEE 3 e 3R

BEESRBRZ
EEEBRR

B ()
ERES 2 & 0 TIRREHD

B 5 M AR AR N EL A MR AR IER > (B n)
FEEBERERD

B SRR R E A R ARIR ORd) #540
e B P 2 & #) TR FRIRIE AN

REXBELRS
B PBEBEREH

REXBHEREFE
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2009
=
HK$000
FRT

205,431

(5,726)

14,947

36,864
53,883
333,914
20,614
12,685

27,564
409,800
(12,884)

(236,262)
6,981
(59,290)

366,320
(63,366)

1,111,475
55,114

26,668

142,284

23,843
(379,170)

105,720

1,085,934
(62,553)

1,023,381

2008

T N\F
HK$'000
FHT
(Restated)
(&31))

201,349

(85,825)

(1,144)

79,623
57,190
189,383
8,401
7,936

8,253
240,029
(138,013)

(108)

(40,476)
6,458
(54,712)

166,884

645,228
(113,670)

108,642
(175,949)
15,767
177,576

6,526

664,120
(32472)

631,648



For The Year Ended March 31,2009 & EZ—ZEThF=A=+—HILtFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Repayment of loan receivable

Increase in amounts due from associates

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits

Purchase of additional interest in a subsidiary

Addition of property, plant and equipment

Addition of prepaid lease payments

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of assets in subsidiaries, net of cash
and cash equivalents acquired

Acquisition of jointly controlled entities, net of
cash and cash equivalents acquired

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and cash
equivalents acquired

Acquisition of an associate

Capital injection into a jointly controlled entity

Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary and
an associate

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Dividends paid

New bank and other borrowings raised

Repayments of bank and other borrowings

Advance from (repayments to) a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary

Capital contribution from minority interests of
subsidiaries

Dividend paid by subsidiaries to its minority
shareholders

NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FdaE FHAT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
BEUFLE 59,290 54712
EEERER 15,000 =
JFE LBt 5 A R ZRIEE AN (58,915) (119,523)
IEEEE ﬂﬁ/%&axﬁaﬁﬁﬁ
(277,606) (128,492)
BIEIRITFETORD (L) 33,530 (135,180)
b NI P - (321)
NEWME - BE KRE (1,423,094) (1,093,762)
AREBERNHEERE (40,075) (95,206)
HEME - BE REEMEHIE
1,536 4,486
BB AREE « RRUEE
Re KA EEEE 40 (28,358) 1,641
WS LRSI E RS - BRI 2
RekREeEEEE 41 (20,042) (88,923)
W - HIBRKE 2 REe R
ReEEEE 42 (241,485) (532,668)
g NS (3,301)
MERIEHEEEE - (157,965)
W BARRBEREZ
FEfSFRIA - (286,733)
HERHEE 2 IRE 2 TS FIE
- 5,570
RETEFMARSFEHR (1,983,520) (2,572,364)
RMEEE
BRFLE (360,066) (238,790)
BT LB Z TSR 1,720 49,606
BRRE (39,997) (38,619)
FEGBRTREMEER 3,894,133 2,944,169
[ Efﬁdﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬂ% (2,015,180) (906,875)
% (M) fBARZ DEAREER GER)
5,806 (6,716)
MEBARLERELE
14,175 91,815
M A RRAS DB 2 AR B
(47,061) (44,269)
MEITBMBRSTFE
1,453,530 1,850,321
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For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—FEZNF=A=+—HILFE

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

RERREEEAEZEM
(RD) 8

FAZRERRESEERE

ER#s %

FRZBASRALEEER

RERREEEHELRDIT

RITREBLRS

Financial Report 2009 B4 7% &

2009

—EZAEF

HK$'000

FTEx

493,391

1,510,044

45,263

2,048,698

2,048,698

2008

T N\F
HK$'000
FHT
(Restated)
(&751)

(90,395)

1,482,930

117,509

1,510,044

1,510,044



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR R

For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—FEZTAF=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of the Group's annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out note 50.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS") and the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is
Renminbi (‘RMB"). As the Company is a listed entity in Hong Kong, the
directors consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated financial
statements in HKS.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments and
interpretations (“New HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are or have become effective for the
Group’'s financial year beginning April 1, 2008.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of financial assets

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 —The limit on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding requirements
and their interaction

The adoption of these New HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting years have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been
required.

—REHR
ARARBREEMR LA —HERRERA
m EROREEBRERSMBERAR(TBR
PR ERLET - RABZEMMPEERERE K
HENAREFIHR ARER | —EAKE -

ARRA—FEHREERAR - KRB EEHBR
B)2 EBEH N HIFES0 ©

RAMBHRRIDAETINR - AR E REM B
RAZNEEBARBARE(TARKE ] - ARA
RAREBLTZER EERRABTEIER
BUBHRRDBREZE -

KA REETE R BREER
(TERMBRELER )

RAEE » AEEEREAATHEEGFTEA
g((EEEMAE DBEMR _ZTENF—F—
ARGz M EE AR IER MR B (TS
R ]) -

BBSERERR SREENENIE
B SIS ERE 75
(f&5T)
BRERRBREABRES PR B &R
—RE)
EREREREREEES BAGTERE 195
—2E14 —HREMR
BE  REES
REREEENRE

RN B BM B RELENH A EEARFEEIBE
B FENRERTBRANRE L 25 EE
T8 - At - BARBEFEELHE -
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At 31 March 2009 #ZE ==

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < MizE

ThFE=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 & HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 13

HK(IFRIC) — INT 15

HK(FRIC) — INT 16

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

HK(FRIC) — INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 '
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 ?

Presentation of financial statements *

Borrowing costs *

Consolidated and separate financial
statements *

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation *

Eligible hedged items *

First-time adoption of financial reporting
standards *

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate *

Vesting conditions and cancellations *

Business combinations *

Improving disclosures about financial
instruments *

Operating segments *

Embedded derivatives ®

Customer loyalty programmes ©

Agreements for the construction of real
estate

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation ’

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners *

Transfer of assets from customers &

' Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2009.

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009,
July 1,2009 and January 1, 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009.

4 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009.

> Effective for accounting periods ending on or after June 30, 2009.

¢ Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2008.

7 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after October 1, 2008.

8 Effective for transfers on or after July 1, 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < MizE

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BMAFFTIREETEABVHREER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after April 1,
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes in
the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company
are still assessing the potential impact of the above new and revised standards
and have not yet quantified the potential impact.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Controlis achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

(TEBMHHREER ) @)

RNB BB RERRFIRAEERT) AT E
WERHA T ZTFMA—HkZR2ABE
BaMzatRE - BEGFHEFREE
FDRFEAEENMERR 2 EaE 8 2 S5tk
I o AR FEENAEE LR REFTER
ZEEZE R ARERWEERYE -

EXETHE

RAEUMBBRIBEETESHMASMRMZE
BMEHRE LRGSR - 1IN GRMBEHRRERE
B PR ETARAI R BB R RGEDIFARE 28
FR%ESSE -

BRIREMERETERTARATEFE(ZAT
XEFBRIBRE)SN - AR B ISR TIRE LK
REREGRS -

REEE

FEMBHRREBEARRMEARRAEGERE(
MBAR)2HBHRE - EARFRRERERR
BT B A S R A B SRS HE R A 5565 - B o
BEEHIRE o

\

N

FARBHEEZMBRAR 2 X AHRKBERR
i R AR & AR B L (OB A R YE)E
NEEBR W ER -

WERE  ARESHHNBARZIBREREL
HE - EEETBOREAREE MK S R RMAR
RERT—H -

PREAKERARARRZRS - &tk WAKRRX
EREREIRE FE i -

FaMBARFEEANNDBRRAMGERER
SEFMENERESRZS - BEFET 2 DEK
REDRBEZERANREARES 0 B BN BEE
ROBBRREMLZAE G BHAROBR AR E
B o SEAR D BURR A0 B IR A B A B
BRSO S AR E e RS E R S
B HEADBBRRANRNEERATARIMZE R
REIBERID -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, goodwill is calculated as
the difference between the consideration paid for the additional interest and
the carrying amount of the net assets of the businesses attributable to the
additional interest acquired. If the Group's additional interest in the net assets
of the subsidiaries exceeds the consideration paid for the additional interest,
the excess is recognised as income in the consolidated income statement.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree initially measured at
the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to April 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets or businesses or a jointly
controlled entity for which the agreement date is before April 1, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree
at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions of net assets and
operations another entity or a jointly controlled entity before April 1, 2005,
the Group has discontinued amortisation from April 1, 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may
be impaired.
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At 31 March 2009 #ZE ==

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < MizE

ThFE=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Goodwill (continuec

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after April 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business or a jointly controlled entity
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the relevant business or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

On acquisition of additional interest in businesses, the excess of the fair value
of the consideration over the carrying values of the underlying assets and
liabilities attributable to the additional interest in businesses acquired by the
Group are recognised as goodwill.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business or a jointly
controlled entity is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a business or a jointly controlled entity, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Underthe equity method, interests in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the net assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of
losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

REFTBER (4
BB ()

R-FFERFHA—ARELTRIBEEEZ
EEXLEE

WHE Rk KRR HI R E L 2 B T B K
AEBASENKEE B RGEBEBRARZE
HERABANEE  BEMIRAERITFFEZ
Hmz 28 o AREEEKARERN RETREE
18518 -

MIBBEBERE - KERQTESHAEEPTK
BRBEBIMERRGEZEREERBERAE
MEFEERREE

Hﬂlﬁﬁii‘&i (EEHIBRAELZEENMEEHE
NraEEREBEXRERZIIREBTVEE -

SORERRANE - BE SR RHCKE 2 HR
RYRE R 2 ) 2 W B P E A O R B REUR 2 B 3
MEGR AR - EHIKMEE 2 RER & BIRF
S EB P RETELA s R IRBERSRE
MEETBFERBEELNEE - EMBNR
BRRSBMENZITBEETEADRE - &
IREUR & B 2 A D S BB 2 BRE(E -
AIEERREBR IR - HURE LD IREZER
MEMEENREE  MERNREMATEE
MREERLEPIDREESMNEMEE - BEZ
REEIRE ERINRE WA R R - B ER
ZBERERER R T -

HE—EEGR —FKHAREHERER  EEAME
%%ZE’%E@%‘ETJquJ\i%mHj’%H&ZﬁﬁEJZJEﬂEZﬁ
A -

REE N Tz B

BENRYRAEEHEAFERTE ML IEM
BARIIES S s B -

BENRZEXEREERBIIRESETHEAMAA
FAMBEHRERA - RIEEDIHE - RBE AR
ZRERTIERASHARBBRIEHE R EE
/aa@““ébﬁ/\ll&ﬁ%fézmébﬂ% RS E BB
BEER  REAEERRERIIR - EAKEEWN
BEDRZERERSBBERNZHENF 2
= (BREEE LERAREERE QA RNIREFEE
Z— Bz AR - NEBE T EER A
HE—FER - BIMNE RS REERRE
RAE  HENAKEERREEREERE
FRRZEE RN ZFRBR

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRIZERER AT Financial Report 2009 B 153k &

15



16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Interests in associates (continue

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the relevant
associate.

Investments in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation. The Group's share of each of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the jointly controlled entities are combined with
the Group's similar line items, line by line, in the consolidated financial
statements.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group's interest in a jointly
controlled entity is accounted for in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business (see above).

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group,
unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the
full amount of losses is recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Construction contract revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised
when the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably and the stage of
completion at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably. Construction
contract revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the value
of work carried out during the year. When the outcome of a construction
contract for gas connection contracts cannot be estimated reliably, revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
to be recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec 3. EREFEHEE

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from sales of natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG"), coke
and gas appliances are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, which include land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods and services or for administrative
purposes, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is
calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for the Group's own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I EE

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Investment properties (continued)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose and classified as an investment property, and
carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of the leasehold land are recognised
directly in profit or loss for the period in which changes take place.

Aninvestment propertyisderecognised upon disposal orwhentheinvestment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified and
recognised separately from goodwill when they satisfy the definition of an
intangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of
such intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are charged to the income statement by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured
by reference to the value of work carried out during the year to estimated
total costs for the contract.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers for contract work.
Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the
consolidated balance sheet, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the consolidated balance sheet under trade and other receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I EE

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Inventories

Inventories, including construction materials, gas appliances and gas for sales,
LPG, coke, consumables and spare parts, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs to completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are considered
separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Taxation (continuec

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the profit and loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction on
production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of these
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future; or

it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, held-for-trading
investments are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including loan receivable, amounts due from associates, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances are carried atamortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as (a) loan and receivable, (b) held to maturity investments or
(o) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent toinitial recognition
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those classified as held-for-trading, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organisation.

For trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include Group's
past experience of collecting payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount due to
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary, bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds that contain liability component and conversion/
redemption option derivatives

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain liability and conversion/
redemption option derivatives components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option derivatives that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
a conversion option derivative. The redemption option derivatives represent
the redemption at the option of the bond holders before the maturity date.
At the date of issue, both the liability and conversion/redemption option
components are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The conversion/
redemption option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and conversion/redemption option components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the conversion/redemption option derivatives is charged to profit and
loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

China Gas Holdings Limited FERRIZRER AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 &

E u-I—E&ﬁi =
SWMITARE

EHEER Ex
KEARETHEBAEMBRAT AR L
MENTHNBEEARAR S RE EMRATA
MEZRMERR

BRATAEREEAREAEREEERGEME
/\15%:5’]7%?% SHERGH - AEEZ S HEA

—REBREBRATEABRZEREERE
1&%@1%? o REMABMRA T ARK S5
BRI T3

ERFF%
BERMNFERAES A RRERARDERE
FHE 2 B R 2705 - BRMETIZEEEA
18 2 TRETF Hi i A B B R AR ) S R AR e
ERFRGEFARRBESNREEREFEZT
Ko FI S FSIRER AR EERER o

EHAE
CRBEBEREIRNRRREMEMNKE - &
B AR D BARRIE - RITREMEER - T
H12#B ERF TR AMHK AT E -

BEaBERIAR EEEEETET AN
BIRES

ABBRESHAREET EREEaERE
%/ﬁ@k%%ﬁilﬁZﬁMﬁ R EIRERE

BN BRATNRIAR - BEGRERT S AERR
SREMSBMEEIRARARGEEHE 2K
ATAMBEE  HRBGEEETETA - BE

ﬁ%ﬁé?ﬁilﬁ?éﬁ%%ﬁ/\#“ﬁﬁElEﬁZij’iTi%
fBE - RETEH - BERRR TEEEREN
HETAZ AR ATFEER °

NEREE - AHRRES 2 B EE 0 AR =
SERE BRI o AR TEERBEITAT
BRARATFEFE  EAFEZZHNIERE

7
s °

BREBITR MR ES B2 X ZRA - ISR
DERLPISEEEFRRRTEEERE 2
17 o ERE EERBEITETABRZ R 5K
AEEMEZRHIR - BRAEDZZIKRAG
ABEEOZREE - ABRF RN AR E
7 HifE g -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the
contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in profit or loss as they arise.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are separated from
the relevant host contracts (the liability component) and deemed as held-
for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contracts, and the
combined contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
In all other circumstances, derivatives embedded are not separated and
are accounted for together with the host contracts in accordance with
appropriate standards. Where the Group needs to separate an embedded
derivative but is unable to measure the embedded derivative, the combined
contract is treated as held-for-trading.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Company after November 7,
2002 and vested on or after January 1, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity (employee
share-based compensation reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to employee share-based
compensation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Equity settled share-based payment transactions (continued)

Share options granted to employees of the Company after November 7,
2002 and vested on or after January 1, 2005 (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.

Share options granted to employees on or before November 7, 2002 or
vested after November 7, 2002 and vested before January 1, 2005

The financial impact of the share options granted and fully vested before April
1,2005 is not recorded in the Company’s or the Group's financial statements
until such time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
income statement in respect of the value of options granted in the year. Upon
the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by
the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium account. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs. Grants related to depreciable assets
are presented as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and are released to income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants related
to expense items are recognised in the same period as those expenses are
charged in the consolidated income statement and are reported separately
as ‘other income”.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets, to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is on indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

4. RESTATEMENTS

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Group acquired a jointly controlled
entity and business of which the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired were determined provisionally. During
the year, the Group made certain fair value adjustments, with reference to
the valuation reports, to the carrying amounts of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity and business acquired as a result of
completing the initial accounting. The adjustments to the fair values at the
acquisition date of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

4, &5
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WHE—RAREHIERNES  MEFMEEZ
AHEBEE BEARKABBEZ A FETIRER
EE - FN - ARESE[ERS  RUBES
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were made as if initial accounting had been completed on the acquisition
date.

The cumulative effects of the above restatements on the consolidated
balance sheet as at March 31, 2008 are summarised below:

fEH -

ERBIIHR B RN F= AT —B2EAE

ERBERZZEZEHIINT

Subsequent fair value adjustments on

RATREELZEANTERE
Establishment

of a jointly Acquisition

controlled of
Asat entity business Asat
March 31,2008 (note 41(ii)) (note 42(vi)) Total March 31,2008

R

R-ZBENE HEEHER KB ER R-BENE
=ZA=1-A (BaE41(i) (BtE42(vi) @3 =A=t-8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET THT TET TET
(originally stated) (restated)
(1RR51) (&51)
Goodwill BE 418,247 - 11,175 11,175 429422
Other intangible assets HipEpEE 319658 28380 29217) (837) 318821
Deferred taxation EREHR (105,153) (7,095) 7,304 209 (104,944)
Other assets and liabilities HiEERERE 3,042,708 - - - 3,042,708
Net assets FEE 3,675,460 21,285 (10738) 10,547 3,686,007
Minority interests DERFER 556,173 - (10,738) (10,738) 545435
Other reserves items HibfEEER 2,388,648 - = = 2,388,648
Retained earnings REAEF 730,639 21,285 - 21,285 751,924
3675460 21,285 (10,738) 10,547 3,686,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R FI 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HIEFE

4. RESTATEMENTS (continued)

The effects of above restatements on the results for the current and prior year

are as follows:

B ()

ERBFIBAFER FFEREEFENT

2009 2008
—EEhE —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FT

Increase in discount on acquisition of W KR HEE 2
a jointly controlled entity Hraigm - 21,285
Increase in amortisation of intangible assets BB B 2 B EEIE N (28) =
Decrease in taxation IR A 7 -
(Decrease) increase in profit for the year AEDEF Cd) 80 (21) 21,285

Attributable to: JEA

Equity holders of the Company EYNGT[ (21) 21,285
Increase in basic earnings per share BRRERZFIE M - HK0.66 centsl
Increase in diluted earnings per share GREE R FIE M - HK0.60 centsi#ll

Analysis of (decrease) increase in profit of the year by line item presented

RIBEBBEINEEZ5 2 FREENOR D) E 4740

according to their functions: S 8
2009 2008
—ETNE —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Increase in cost of sales SHE AL N (28) =

Increase in discount on acquisition of a jointly — UWEEHREIEFIEEE ~

controlled entity Hramigm - 21,285
Decrease in taxation IR A 7 -
(Decrease) increase in profit for the year AEDEF CRd) i (21) 21,285

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet dates, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The management of the Group uses their judgments in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. For derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds with
embedded derivatives, assumptions are made based on quoted market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 7R &R I EE

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwiill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate present value. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
goodwill at March 31, 2009 was HK$633,620,000 (2008: HK$429,422,000) with
no impairment loss recognised. Details of the value in use calculation are set
out in note 25.

Impairment of intangible assets

At the balance sheet date, management reconsidered the recoverability
of its intangible assets arising from the acquisitions of businesses/assets, in
which the carrying amount at March 31, 2009 was HK$320,297,000 (2008:
HK$318,821,000). The business of the cash generating unit (“CGU") continues
to progress in a satisfactory manner. Detailed valuation analysis has been
carried out and management is confident that the carrying amount of the
asset will be recovered in full. This situation will be closely monitored. Any
change in the business environment may lead to the change of expected
future cashflows in the future. If the future recoverable amounts falls below
the carrying amounts, additional impairment is required.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of
the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimates, such differences from the original estimates will impact
the depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates change.

Impairment on amounts due from customers for contract work

At each balance sheet date, management reconsidered the recoverability of
its amounts due from customers for contract work based on its assessment
of the likelihood of ultimately collecting the amounts from its customers.
In determining whether impairment is required, the Group takes into
consideration of the construction in progress and the progress payments
received from its customers. Impairment is recognised for those contracts
that may not be honored by the customers and the balance may not be
collectible. During the year, the Group has recognised impairment loss on
amounts due from customers for contract work of HK$36,864,000 (2008:
HK$79,623,000). If more customers fail to honor the terms of agreement than
expected, additional impairment is required.

Estimated allowance of trade and other receivables

The Group makes allowance of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of receivables. Allowance is applied to trade
and other receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification of allowance
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of trade and other receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the periods in which such estimate
has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SRR Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued) 5. hEfTHBEREZZEERRA)

Deferred taxation

As at March 31, 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$846,411,000
(2008: HK$520,802,000) available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset in relation to these unused tax losses has been recognised in the
Group's balance sheet due to uncertainty of future profit streams. In cases
where there are future profits generated to utilise the tax losses, a material
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such future profits are recorded.

Revenue recognition of gas connection contract

Construction revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
of the contract costs incurred for the work performed to date over the
estimated total costs. Accordingly, any changes to the estimated total cost
may have material impact on the contract revenue recognised in each
accounting period over the contract term.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure
of the Group consists of debts, which include the bank and other borrowings,
amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary and convertible bonds
disclosed in notes 35, 37 and 38 respectively, and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital disclosed in note
36, reserves and accumulated profits as disclosed in consolidated statements
of changes in equity. The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

Categories of financial instruments

IEFERLTE

RZZTTNAF=ZA=1+—0  AEETHEEER
2 i ) 2 A 155 F 54 T /5 48 /8846,411,00078 7T (=
T\ : 520,802,0007) c ANEEWENEE
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TBEE © MRS EERTEE E P50 8 25 F)
Z HAEAfE R R TR o
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RARER A 82 TR A TR E D L7 AR
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B (R BIED BIRMEE3S « 37 &38R Z RITK
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Mia3e ki E BB RFE 2 ERTRAAR
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HEEBHERGAZ AR EAREE - Bt
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BEREEREEH FOHLBRBERNGE - FA
REE 2 RERBEERE -

@I EER
2009 2008
—EThE —ETNEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHAT
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE 41,995 18,376
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBEKRE 11,544 42074
Loans and receivables (including cash B EBGRIA
and cash equivalents) (BEReRReEEEE) 4,120,309 2,371,312
Derivative financial assets TEEREE 1,261 10,976
Financial liabilities CRAE
Amortised cost HESHARR 12,551,946 6,630,388
Derivative financial liabilities METREE 360,869 4,264

China Gas Holdings Limited FERRIZRAER AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SRR Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continuec

Market risks

Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue in RMB and most of the expenditures
as well as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB. Future exchange
rates of RMB could vary significantly from the current or historical exchange
rates as a result of controls that could be imposed by the PRC government.
The exchange rates may also be affected by economic developments and
political changes domestically and internationally and supply and demand of
RMB. The appreciation or devaluation of RMB against foreign currencies may
have positive or negative impact on the results of operations of the Group.

As at balance sheet date, the Group has convertible bonds, certain bank
balances, trade payables and bank and other borrowings that are not
denominated in functional currency of relevant group entities. The carrying
amounts of the Group's monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in foreign currency are as follows:

6. TRITE (%)

M EREE B EREE ()

5

BEmLR

REE A WEE G AN RBEUER - AR B
X RERRSIGAARBEHE - AR Z KRR
BEE o of; & (R e B IO T A e i 2 2 1l 35 B s
BEZEFHREAEZR - EXFEIAMKLE
BOBEE R RBUREE) - AR AR Z R
B ARBHIIETHEXR BRI ESHAREEZ
FEBKEAKEETE -

REER  AEEEABRES  ETRTE
#% BHRNRAREEYIFARREREEEY
BEEWEHE - ARELMINERHEZEREERE
BZAREENT

Assets Liabilities
EE =R

2009 2008 2009 2008

—EEAE —EINF —EThE —TTN\F

HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FExT TAT FExT FHT

usD E7T 373,531 51,408 3,448,881 1,928,087

HKS T 11,895 20,672 - -

JPY H - = 47,479 44574

EUR BT - - 22,907 -
Sensitivity analysis BREDT

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2008: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against respective foreign currencies and all other
variables were held constant. 5% (2008: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used by
management in the assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts its translation at the year
end for a 5% (2008: 5%) change in foreign currencies rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB strengthen
5% (2008: 5%) against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2008: 5%)
weakening of RMB against respective foreign currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year.

TRFMAEEARE XS INEFHE REZE%
ZHRRE  FTEHEMBEHERTE 5% (ZTT
NE 5%) BERE T HINESE AL EE 25
RE LR o GUREDITE BIRBITEINZ INERT
BEEHIEE  WHINEERZ5% (ZTTN\F :
5%) B BN FRFEHLIRE - TRATRZIEEIE
Hi AR S AR EEAHES S (ZTT)\F : 5%)
B FEBFSAMEA - RARBEGEINE
BN (ZTTN\F : 5%)ME @ EEHFEEF
BRAERERAZZE -

Increase in profit (loss) for

the year

FRRR (B58) B
2009 2008
—BThE —TIENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
USD impact EnRE 153,768 93,834
HKD impact BT (595) (1,034)
JPY impact HEZZ 2,374 2,229
EUR impact BT e 1,145 =
156,692 95,029
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continue

Market risks (continuec

Interest rate risks

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on interest rate level
as well as potential impact on the Group's financial position arising from
volatility. Interest rate swap is the hedging instrument most commonly used
by the Group to manage interest rate exposure.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank and
other borrowings and the convertible bonds issued by the Group (see notes
35 and 38 for details of these borrowings and convertible bonds respectively).
In relation to the fixed-rate bank and other borrowings, the Group entered
into interest rate swaps to manage its exposures to changes in fair values of
the bank and other borrowings. These hedging activities do not qualify for
hedge accounting. The changes in fair value of the interest rate swaps are
recognised in the profit and loss as they arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to variable-rate bank
and other borrowings (see note 35 for details of these borrowings). It is the
Group's policy to keep its bank and other borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk for both floating-rate bank and other borrowings and interest
rate swaps, together with the interest capitalised to construction in progress
at the balance sheet date. A change of 100 basis points (2008: 100 basis
points) was applied to the yield curves and interest rate on both floating-
rate bank and other borrowings and interest rate swaps, together with the
interest capitalised to construction in progress. The applied change is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. If the interest rate of variable rate bank and other borrowings
and interest rate swaps, together with the interest capitalised to construction
in progress had been 100 basis points (2008: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year,
after taking amount of interest capitalised, would increase/decrease by
HK$192,710,000 (2008: HK$40,247,000).

Equity price risk

The Group's available-for-sale investments and held-for-trading investments
are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity security price risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risks of listed equity instrument at the reporting date. A 10%
(2008: 10%) change is used when reporting equity price risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in equity price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SRR Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont 6. TRITE(#

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continue

M EREE R EREE ()

Market risks (continuec 45 2l B2 ()
Equity price risk (continued) R B 15 2 b ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRE DT ()

For the year ended March 31, 2009, if the market bid prices of the listed
investments had been 10% (2008: 10%) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's profit for the year would increase/decrease
by HK$1,681,000 (2008: HK$4,207,000) and the Group's investment revaluation
reserve willincrease/decrease by HKSnil (2008: HK$1,177,000) respectively. This
is mainly attributable to the changes in fair values of the listed investments
held for trading and available-for-sale investments respectively.

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counter parties or debtors in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each half-year end
date and balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk on amount due from an associate, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers. In order to minimise the
credit risk on amount due from an associate, the directors of the Company
closely monitors the subsequent settlement and does not grant long credit
period to the counterparty. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significant reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited
because the counterparties are reputatable banks in the PRC and banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The policy of allowances for doubtful debts of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on
management’s estimate. In determining whether impairment is required, the
Group takes into consideration of aging status and likelihood of collection.
Specific allowance is only made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected
and is recognised on the difference between the estimated future cash flows
expected to receive discounted using the original effective interest rate and
the carrying value. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance may be required.
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hEEZHREMIFEEERERAIHEERE Y
ATFED RIS -

/i%/—mf

R-ZBZAF=A=1—8  ARHEFHTHER
ARERTENSHERACREECEERE
BAKERZHUBER - AREZRAERERAR
THERGEEERBRMIZEFEEZRE
@

REBEFEEERR  AEE2EEERHIEN
hEEBTEEERE FEEHIEMERE
Fr o ARER BB R B B B R AN BRAE T3 » 1t
Sh - AEERFFEERRFREEAERNER
BH5ERAIRESHE - UERBEARGERDZ S
MIEL RIAMERE - ST E - ARAEER
RAEEZ EERBRARERD

BB S R RIFIBZ SR ERRARS - AEE
YEEAEFZEREAR  BRIMGRZBEF
73&%)5 RESRERKEERRFEZEE
RAEEH fﬂﬁt%ﬁﬁi\é:,zmﬁ AYE
W%?H&%EE@EEH}% c BUUETE - ARBE
RRAEE 2 EEARERERE

BREF T H AT EEERFZRITRESEER
EENRABTERBREENRZIRT - Bt
RBEERITELRTAZEERBREBR °

AEERRRREZBRIVRBERS ZTW@E
KRB ONTRHE A R E R BHRERE - REE
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%'ﬁ%@%%%%\ﬁ&ﬂW@
14 o BT AR LU R 2 B8 UK IR A A I8¢
- WRERRERFRIEER 28 FRERMGER
KRB LMEREER 2 ZFEHER - WASEES
ZEBRREE  BRERF ZERBETIRDS © A
A BEZRIE I BROMES -

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRIZERER AT Financial Report 2009 B 153k &

33



34

AN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continue

Market risks (continued

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current liabilities of HK$666,152,000 as at March 31, 2009.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis because the directors believed that the Group has sufficient
funds to finance its current working capital requirements taking into account
of the cash flows from operations, the utilisation of the available unutilised
long-term bank loans facilities. As at March 31, 2009, the Group had available
unutilised long-term bank loans facilities of HK$12,914,680,000 (2008:
HKS$11,558,687,000). Details of the Group's bank and other borrowings at
March 31, 2009 are set out in note 35.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. In additional to issuance of new shares and convertible bonds,
the Group also relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. The management monitors the utilisation of bank and other
borrowings.

Liquidity tables

For non-derivative financial liabilities, the following tables detail the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

At 31 March 2009 #Z=—FTNF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

6. LT A
SRS EE B ERBE(E)

Market risks (continued) 45 B e (1)
Liquidity risk (continued) MEBE & (1)
Liquidity tables (continued) B EEFZ ()
Weighted Carrying
average  Payable Between Between Total amountat
contractual on Lessthan 1to 3months Between Over undiscounted  balance
interestrate  demand 1month 3months to1year 1to5years  5Syears cashflows sheetdate
mEFY  EEEX -fifZ Z=fiRZ BRER REERZ
EEES 2 JR-EBR =fEA —-§ -5ERF EENE  BER  BEE
%  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
% Thr Thr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TiEn
AtMarch 31,2009 REEAF=A=1-R
Trade and bill payables BARNEARENRE N/ATRER - 304908 907030 299291 - - 151129 1511229
Other payables EfREEE NATER - 13193 %6610 43092 - - 8% 271,636
Amounts due to minority RHBRRDBRR A
shareholders of subsidiaries NATMER 99,745 - - - - - 9974 99,745
Bank and other borrowings HITRAMEE
- fixed rate —E8 59% = = - 2942477 2066739 3699403 8708614 7392080
~floating rate %8 6.60% = = = 73041 582282 3151564 3806887 2905842
Convertible bonds Ak ES 45% - - - - 16157 16157 14823
Amount due to a minority REBRARSERE LA
shareholder of a subsidiary 26 - - - - 392250 - 392250 356591
99745 436842 1003640 33578% 3057428 6850967 14806518 12551946
AtMarch 31,2008 RZZEN\F=A=1-H
Trade and bill payables BARNEARENRE N/ATRER - 94110 186476 79082 - - 359668 359668
Other payables EfpEEE NATER - 26587 5546 29388 - - Mmoo
Amounts due to minority RHEARDERE LR
shareholders of subsidiaries NATNER 24558 - - - - - 45 24558
Bank and other borrowings BITRAMEE
— fixed rate -E8 497% - = - 164867 1617391 4589340 6371598 4714191
~floating rate -5 6:48% = = = - 2878% 1116533 1404427 1067324
Convertible bonds maRESR 45% = = = - 16,198 = 16198 14334
Amount due to a minority REBRARSERE LA
shareholder of a subsidiary 26 - - - - 373000 - 373001 339092
24558 120697 241722 273337 2294484 5705873 8660671 6630388
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SRR Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observable current market transactions; and

the fair value of interest rate range accrual swaps as set out in note
30, are calculated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the
application yield curve derived from quoted interest rates and quoted
spot and forward foreign exchange rates. For an option-based derivative
embedded in convertible bonds, the fair value is estimated using option

pricing model.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

7. REVENUE

Revenue mainly represents, the net amounts received and receivable for sales
of piped gas, LPG and coke and gas appliances and construction contract
revenue from gas connection contracts by the Group for the year and is

analysed as follows:
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2009 2008

—ZETAF —ZTT)\F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FEx FIT

Sales of piped gas HEEBMR 2,678,377 1,691,159
Gas connection income R B 1,127,403 615,282
Sales of LPG SHELPG 2,272,173 -
Sales of coke and gas appliances SHEME LR ERE 244,086 244,146
Others Al 1,784 1,488
6,323,823 2,552,075

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently mainly organised into four
operating divisions — sales of piped gas, gas connection income, sales of LPG
and sales of coke and gas appliances. These principal operating activities are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
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At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=+—HIFE

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

2009
—EEhE

REVENUE
SEGMENT RESULT

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs
Change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments
Discount on acquisition of a
jointly controlled entity
Discount on acquisition of
an associate
Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
,Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Additions to goodwill

Additions to intangible assets

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to property, plant and
equipment (unallocated)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
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EVEERE
mE - BERREZRE

MmE - BERREZ
RE (RokL)

HEDE  BEX
R EE

Sales of

Gas

piped gas connection

BERR
HE
HK$’000
TERT
2,678,377

438,727

8,860

9,423,016

279,459

53,688

14,161

1,626,649

27,499

RMRER
HK$000
TRT
1,127,403

310,578

776,330

1,132,019

IEXRB 2 D EEHETINT

Sales of

coke

Salesof  andgas
LPG appliances
MER R

LPGEH#HE REHE
HK$’000  HK$'000
THERT TERT
2,272,173 244,086
(3,992) 5,415
3,033,345 37,000
844,799 54,949
150,510 -
2,136,750 -
65 -
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Others Consolidated

Hith
HK$’000
TER
1,784

5,306

295,127

o)
HK$'000
TERT

6,323,823
756,034

125,586
(149,215)
(409,800)

(366,320)
8,860

227,402
12,884

205,431
(71,472)

133,959

13,564,818
1,006,332
3,515,616

18,086,766

2,311,226
11,758,269

14,069,495

204,198

14,161

3,763,399

2,980

3,766,379

27,564
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At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=+—HIFE

2009
—E2ERE
Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas Salesof  andgas
piped gas connection LPG appliances Others Consolidated
EERR RERRE
HE REER  LPeHE  REHE Hits e
HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT FHET FHET FAET
Amortisation of intangible assets B AR EH 12,685 - - - - 12,685
Release of prepaid lease payment FRENEETIE 12,358 - 6,480 - - 18,838
Release of prepaid lease payment BRENEETE
(unallocated) (RPHEL) 1,776
20,614
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BE RE
equipment ZIE 273,462, - 40,240 - - 313,702
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BERREZHE
equipment (unallocated) (RPE) 20,212
333,914
Impairment loss of amounts due ElEFZAEHTIR
from customers for contract work FIEREER - 36,864 - - = 36,864
Allowance for trade and other B 5 IR R EoAth
receivables JENERIE 2 Bt 53,883 - - - - 53,883
Change in fair value of investment REWEZ A FHER
properties - - - - 5,726 5,726
Impairment loss recognised on BRAEHERE
available-for-sale investments ZREEE (RHE)
(unallocated) 14,947
Change in fair value of derivative fTEemIAY
financial instruments (unallocated) AFEES (RHE) 366,320
Discounts on acquisition of an associate  URBBE & A E K
and a jointly controlled equity HREEGIEEE
(unallocated) ZIE (KOl 236,262
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SRR Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #Z =T TNF=A=+—HILFE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 8. EK R A EER (4

Business segments (continued) ES Rt
2008 (restated)
—Z2ENE (%))
Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas and gas
piped gas connection  appliances Others Consolidated
EERR R R
$HE IR HIEHE Hoh iE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHAIT FHAT FHAIT FHAIT FHAT
REVENUE Wz 1,691,159 615,282 244,146 1,488 2,552,075
SEGMENT RESULT R ES 223,018 111,071 5,844 84,957 424,890
Unallocated corporate revenue N /NG 6 103,705
Unallocated corporate expenses AABARFHX (98,822)
Finance costs B8 (240,029)
Change in fair value of derivative TEEMIAATEES
financial instruments (166,884)
Discounts on acquisition of Wi LRI R S
ajointly controlled e Py
entity and business 40,476 - - - 40,476
Share of results of associates i YN ES 138,013
Profit before taxation B A ) 201,349
Taxation el (13,778)
Profit for the year REZHF 187,571
ASSETS EE
Segment assets iﬁﬁé 7,944,293 911,895 42,772 279,749 9,178,709
Interests in associates ‘p‘%’& Al 214,291
Unallocated corporate assets Ek 7§§ 1,913,127
Consolidated total assets HAEESE 11,306,127
LIABILITIES 8fE
Segment liabilities HEEE 810,262 326,801 82,246 100 1,219,409
Unallocated corporate liabilities VN /NCTN=L 6,400,711
Consolidated total liabilities TAEaERR 7,620,120
OTHER INFORMATION Hitg #}
Additions to goodwill EERE 129,457 = = = 129,457
Additions to intangible assets EFEENE 228,306 - - - 228,306
Additions to property, plant and mE - BER
equipment BEZRE 2,309,216 - - - 2309216
Additions to property, plant and E W%& i3z
equipment (unallocated) NE (RDE) 15,905
2,325,121
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment HiE2 BB 6,852 = = = 6,852
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREHZ
plant and equipment (unallocated) BB (R 1,401
8,253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HILFE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

8. XK g pEER (&)

Business segments (continued) EBDE(E)
2008 (restated)
—s2NE (7))
Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas and gas
piped gas connection  appliances Others Consolidated
MR N WRIE R R
HE TRRRER RS Hit e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FHAIT
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEZ#H 7,936 - - - 7,936
Release of prepaid lease payment BEENHEERE 8,035 - - - 8,035
Release of prepaid lease payment BEENEETE
(unallocated) (RDHE) 366
8,401
Depreciation of property, plantand %% - BERREZHE
equipment 182,525 = = = 182,525
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% * BB kEEZITE
equipment (unallocated) (RHE) 6,858
189,383
Impairment loss on amounts due Rz A&HTE
from customers for contract work R EEE = 79,623 = = 79,623
Allowance for trade and B 5 MR R E Ao
other receivables FEUTBRTE 7 1 57,190 - - - 57,190
Change in fair value of investment REWE 2 ATEE
properties - - - 85,825 85,825
Change in fair value of derivative ITEERIAL
financial instruments (unallocated) RTEEH (RHE) 166,884
Discounts on acquisition of a W EE LRI B RS
jointly controlled ISES 7 ki
entity and business (unallocated) (KA 40,476
Geographical segments b A

The Group's operations and the segment assets are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no analysis of the Group's revenue and the carrying amount of

segment assets by geographical segment is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SRR Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HttlgA
2009 2008
—EEAF —TEN\F
HK$'000 HK$/000
T FHTT
Interest income FEUA 59,290 54,712
Subsidies from PRC governmental authorities:  ®F BB T 14 2 BB
— compensation of loss incurred in coal — RS B E 1R
gas operation (note a) BESE (PitEa) 11,059 12,192
— subsidy for replacement of pipelines for —ERRARHEEES
natural gas supply (note b) ZEB (H5Eb) 32,028 18,818
— tax refund (note c) —iRF (FisEc) 3,637 5,583
Profit on sales of industrial materials HETEYRZRF 181 16,383
Repair and maintenance services fee BIERRERBE 9,318 4917
Other services income H BRI WA 14,211 =
Income from leasing of equipments R AR WA 12,165 -
Foreign exchange gain P 5 Wiz 63,366 56,166
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHHEREZ
investments e 58 - 1,144
Discount on acquisition of additional interests ~ 1#ZE&HI B A AlHEZS
in a subsidiary (note 40) e (PisE40) - 108
Other Hith 20,501 18,703
225,756 188,726
Notes: P &E -
(@) Pursuant to notice of compensation dated August 28, 2007 issued by the relevant @ WBREFEEBBUNKERN _ZZLFN\A=1+/\H

government authority in the PRC, #EIEFR TR ER AR (HRIEFLR"),
a subsidiary of the Company, received a compensation from the government
authority to subsidise for the increase in cost of sales of natural gas by reference
to monthly purchase volume by #EJIEF ¥ for both years.

For the year ended March 31,2009, #E I ¥ received a subsidy of HK$23,233,000
(2008: HK$13,776,000) from #ENET BB for the cost incurred for the setting
up pipeline network for the customers in new urban areas and replacement of
old pipeline network of the natural gas users in Fushun city. All the required
work has been completed by #EJER#4. In addition, JER R T R ER A
A) (VER AR, a subsidiary of the Company, was entitled to receive subsidies
of HK$8,795,000 for the year (2008: HK$5,042,000) from YERI BB/ for
its additional costs incurred in certain gas connection contracts in which the
connection fee is fixed by the relevant government authority in the PRC. All the
costs incurred were recognised as cost of sales in profit or loss during the year.

The PRC government authorities have granted a tax incentive to certain
subsidiaries in the PRC by way of tax refund for natural gas business operated in
the PRC.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRGR AT

FHWREBAE - AR FIME A REIEF AT
HERAR AR ([HRIEF KR 1) B YT AT RS B
(B - LARBE R A RUEH B RANIE I (2 IRIBH AN 3%
MEFEzSAREE) -

HE-_TZTNAF=A=1+—HALFE ' FIERKHE
VB T B B P 7 ER — IR 38 Y 4 823,233,000 T (=
T\ : 137760008 7T ) + PAE Bh A RIET
ERFEVEBMARAARAFPNEEBEMER -
HIEFMRETRAIARELR - BN - AARIHE
ABERRRATERGR AR (ERBRLR D IEE
BT B R B 15 & 88,795,000/ TL( — T T )\ 4 :
5042000/ 7C) * ARHEEE TEEBEMEAKN(E+FH
BE B TR BA BBUNH AR T ) FTEE £ 2 BBSMNK
o FIEBEBAZ AT RAEE 2 BasiRF R
BB

FRBRAFHER R RS ER TE T+ BB
RE - TARROERBESERARELS ZBIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 B Z=FTENF=A=+—HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B 7% &
2009 2008
—ZTAE —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Interest on: IATIER ZFE :
Bank loans and other borrowings wholly ARAFREREERZ
repayable within five years RITERREMEE 192,295 132,228
Bank loans and other borrowings not BERAFANZHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITERREMEE 292,683 210,714
Convertible bonds (note 38) ARk ES (MEE38) 645 1,781
485,623 344,723
Net interest expense (income) on MEEBHEH 2
interest rate swaps FEREAT (WA) 23,649 (21,001)
Interest capitalised to construction in progress & FEfERE TR AR 2 F 8 (99,472) (83,693)
409,800 240,029

NEBRAEAMERERIRRA—HH 2EE
RAEEE —RIESREFY A EREERT
RAEAMEE =1 5%( —FE)\F : 1.9%)5E o

Borrowing costs capitalised as part of the cost of construction in progress
during the year arose on the general borrowing pool and calculated by
applying a capitalisation rate of 1.5% (2008: 1.9%) to expenditure on qualifying

assets.
11. DISCOUNTS ON ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE, A JOINTLY M. WEBHE QR HEZEFHERBRERKZ
CONTROLLED ENTITY AND BUSINESS iz
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
(restated)
(&%)
Discount on acquisition of an IR E N A2
associate (note 20) g (FFEE20) 227,402 -
Discount on acquisition of a jointly W RS ERE 2
controlled entity (note 41) g (f7E41) 8,860 21,285
Discount on acquisition of business (note 42)  WEEEH 22 (MzE42) - 19,191
236,262 40,476
12. TAXATION 12. Bi1E
2009 2008
—EEThE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B FE TS 98,696 31,755
Deferred taxation (note 39) RERIE (MHE39) (27,224) (17,977)
71,472 13,778
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At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=+—HIFE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profit derived in Hong
Kong for both years.

On June 26, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Revenue Bill
2008 which reduced corporate profit tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect
from the year of assessment 2008/2009.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions in the PRC is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Company are exempted from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the first two years commencing from their first profit-making year of
operation and thereafter, these PRC entities will be entitled to a 50% relief from
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the following three years (“Tax preference”).
The reduced tax rate for the relief period is ranging from 7.5% to 16.5%. The
charge of PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the years has been provided for after
taking these tax incentives into account.

On March 16, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC.
On December 6, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulations
changes the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate to 25% and takes affect for the
PRC group entities of the Company from January 1, 2008.

On December 26, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued a circular on the
implementation of transitional preferential policies for PRC Enterprise Income
Tax. Entities that are currently entitled to preferential tax rates under the old
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law can gradually transition to the new tax rate
of 25% within 5 years after the enforcement of the New Law at a tax rate
of 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in year 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively.

Entities that originally enjoy the Tax preference can continue enjoying the
tax preference based on the original tax rate until after the expiration of the
tax preference. Entities that did not start Tax preference before 2008 because
they were still in loss position shall start the Tax preference from 2008.

BRAEENZWEFEEREBELERD G
B MR A MBI BB S TE R
o

REZZZN\FENA=Z+A EFERBRA=-F
SNFERAEHER - B =TT )N\F TNER
REFRB AR FEHR17.5%mME16.5% °

o B L i 01 2 BUIR T I 2 IR
e

BEFBREBEERER - AREE T+ BB
ARARNBARESRTFEEEMTERNERETH
TEMRBR HEZ=ZFR  ZSHPEEEEE
R RS0 FEMSEMER(HEER]) -
BERAAZEHIBRENT75%E16.5% ° £E &
MEERE  ZEFEZTRRECEMRSHEED
VEHI B -

RZZEZEF=A+RA hHERERIESSE
NT=SREMTEEEMEBOR(H#BOE]) o 1
—ZRFE+—AKA - PRBEBEAMHBUA
BiAA - BTN\ F—H-RE  HHER
B AR R R Bl TS B R A 2 25% » A HE
FEARRZHREEERE -

RZZTZTLF+=-—A=1+<A FEEBKRERE
e B 1b P S F R E B R BUR 3% o B B
Ko IRIBETBEMERER S ERIRER
MEAR BRI ZERTBPEERBRAFTRE
FTREZELWTHE RZTTNF ZFTTh
F ZETF T —FRZT—FIH
RE18% ~ 20% * 22% ~ 24%K225% ©

RAZERBEERNEBIRERENXEES
ERBHER BEEAMRESEMAL R-F
T\EFRREFERT ARG ZEEHRBEEN
B BT N\FRGEZENBES -
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12. TAXATION (continued)

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

12.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before taxation
per the income statement as follows:

BUIE (1)

FREBIREW R KR ZRBAT (B BRI 2 &
BRI

Hong Kong PRC Total
BB HE b
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EERE ZTT/\F ZBEAE T\ ZBEAE ZITT)\f
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx ThT TEx TET TEr TET
(restated) (restated)
(EZ31)) (&31)
(Loss) profit before taxation BEA (B8) &7 (587,991)  (280,778) 793,422 482,127 205,431 201,349

Tax at the domestic income tax rate

Tax effect of share of profit of
associates

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of estimated tax losses
not recognised

BABEREEZHE
i NGt
HERE
SLBET = MR
RxZHEYE

SR = BARBLZ
WAZBBERE

YRR 2 bt HRBR
LB E

(97,019) (49,136)

65,884 26971
(147) (2947)
31,282 25112

198,356 159,102 101,337 109,966

(3,221) (45,544) (3,221) (45,544)
25,858 2619 91,742 29,590
(69,837) (25468) (69,984) (28419)

34,094 16,851 65,376 41,963

Effect of tax exemption granted to RTaTHERE
certain PRC entities RERELTE - (113,778) (93782)  (113,778) (93,782)
Taxation A - 71,472 13,778 71,472 13,778

Note: The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong is 16.5% (2008: 17.5%). For the year ended
March 31,2009, applicable tax rate for the PRCis 25%. For the year ended March
31, 2008, the applicable tax rate for the PRC was 33% from April 1, 2007 to
December 31, 2007 and tax rate of 25% from January 1, 2008 to March 31,

2008.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #Z =T TNF=A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. NEERF

2009 2008
ZEZAF —ZTT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived at REDRMEHIBR
after charging (crediting): (FtA) T3IZIE
Auditor's remuneration ZEETEN S 5,500 3,620
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BB R&EZITE 333,914 189,383
Release of prepaid lease payments ERBEAEERE 20,614 8,401
Amortisation of intangible assets included BRERHERETRZ
in cost of sales I Y 12,685 7,936
Minimum lease payments for operating EBN 2 RIEES
leases in respect of:
— rented premises —HEWE 19,037 9,994
- equipments —&& 55,087 8,092
74,124 18,086
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BB K
plant and equipment =B 27,564 8,253
Share of tax of associates (included JE(REEE A RITIE (B
in share of results of associates) FE(REE R B HEEA) 2,286 21,101
Staff costs: BT :
Directors'emoluments (note 14) EEME (MiEE14) 26,722 32,064
Salaries and allowances of other staff EfibfE 8 2 F KRo=EBG 300,697 176,689
Contributions to retirement benefit AEAhIE 8 MIRIK
scheme contributions of other staff BRETEIHK
58,449 37,451
Less: amount capitalised in construction B BRERTIENAR
in progress - (17,546) (12,367)
368,322 233,837
Cost of inventories recognised MATIEE BEBRARX
as expenses in respect of: ZIFERR
Sales of piped gas HEBEBMA 1,768,878 1,218,993
Sales of LPG SHELPG 1,966,301 -
Contract costs recognised as expense MRRER T RE K
in respect of gas connection RARAZ 2B KK
construction contracts 269,215 155,874
Sales of coke and gas appliances HEME R RERE 196,654 285,248
4,201,048 1,660,115
Rental income from investment properties REMEEEZHEKA
less outgoings of HK$ 1,496,000 SRS $51,496,00058 7T
(2008: HK$369,000) (ZZZ\F : 369,000/7T) (9,005) (4,801)
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At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=1+—HIFE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as follow:

Executive directors
Mr. Li Xiao Yun
Mr. Xu Ying
Mr. Liu Ming Hui
Mr.Ma Jin Long
Mr. Zhu Wei Wei

Non-executive directors
Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi
Mr. Mark Gelinas*
Mr.RK. Goel
Mr.Kim Joong Ho
Mr. Rackets William Hugh
Mr. Jo Yamagata

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Zhao Yu Hua
Dr. Mao ErWan
Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia

Directors’
fees
-0k
HK$'000
FET
WITES
TINERAE 3,000
BRELEE -
PIEAE A4 -
BeEEE =
KEEEE -
FEMITES
RS 120
Mark Gelinas7t 4E* 120
RK. Goelft 4 30
SEMEEE 83
Rackets William Hugh %t 4 -
BRI S A 120
B IEMITES
HEELE 240
E-EET 240
HEi+ 240
4,193

*  The director resigned on March 20, 2009.
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2009
“EENE

Performance

Salaries related
and other  incentive Share-based
benefits payments  payments
FeR ES ;37
Hibgsl #aEes wERAER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET
- - 138
7,188 2,395 -
7,188 4,791 -
165 - -
628 - -
15,169 7,186 138

Contributions
to retirement
benefits
scheme
RIREF
FT &It
HK$'000
FHET

Total
emoluments

HK$'000
THET

3,138
9,595
11,991
165
640

120
120
30
83

120

240
240
240

26,722
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HILFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (continued) 14. EERESMS (&)
Directors (continued) BEE(/E)
2008
“EENE
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors' and other incentive  Share-based benefits Total
fees benefits payments payments scheme  emoluments
ek E PARR{D RINEF
EEvika HbAgF B S BT IR e eH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FHT FHET FHETT FHT FHT FHTT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Li Xiao Yun FNERAE 3,000 - - 138 - 3,138
Mr. Xu Ying HhERE - 7,188 4402 - 12 11,602
Mr. Liu Ming Hui k) - 7,188 8,204 - 12 15,404
Mr. Ma Jin Long BeELE - 120 - - - 120
Mr. Zhu Wei Wei KEREE - 588 - - 12 600
Non-executive directors FRTES
Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi BEELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Mark Gelinas Mark Gelinas st 4 83 - - - - 83
Mr. RK. Goel RK. GoelSt 4 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Jo Yamagata ISR 4 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Harrison Blacker Harrison Blackerft 4 37 - - - - 37
Independent non-executive directors BUFEMTES
Mr. Zhao Yu Hua HEELE 240 - - - - 240
Dr. Mao ErWan E-EEL 240 - - - = 240
Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia HEmL L 240 = - - = 240
4,200 15,084 12,606 138 36 32,064
During both years, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors AEERMERNEEL M TFESERRSIE

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2008: three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2008: two)
individuals were as follows:

IR BB 2 5 (E -

B8

AEEERHFABENALH =R (ZFEN
F:ZR)RARRES - BEMER EXURE -
HHAMA(CEENE  MB)ALZBE0T ¢

2009 2008

—ZTAE —TT)N\EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

Salaries and other benefits e REHAER 10,845 10,782
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIREFIET IR 24 24
10,869 10,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 B Z =T ENF=A=+—HILFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (continued) 14.E=REEMEH)
Employees (continued) EE(E)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZMEERWT -
2009 2008
—EThE T N\F
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH BB AE
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000/ 75 - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T 27,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,0017% 7T 28,000,000/ 7T - 1
15. DIVIDENDS 15. R 2
2009 2008
—EEhF —TTN\F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Final dividend paid in respect of BN ZZZN\FEHR0012BT
2008 of HK$0.012 (2008: HK$0.012 (Z2ZN\F BT tF
in respect of 2007) per share FP%0.01278 7T ) 2 REARR B, 39,997 38,619

The final dividend in respect of 2009 of HK$0.014 (2008: HK$0.012) per share has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders

in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

EZEERRE _TTNFHR004BT(=ZT
TN\F: 00128BTL) 2 REARE - EHRALRR
REERFEFAS L@BHAEE -

16. R E R

AR B EBRBREE SREARE SR TZ
THIERFE

2009 2008
—EEAF —TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(restated)
(&31)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings AEERERENZ BF
per share, being profit for the year (BPZRR RIS e
attributable to equity holders of the Company — ZN4FE35F) 103,679 141,059
Adjustment for the effect of dilutive potential BB #E 2 L EFHE -
ordinary shares:
Change in fair value of A&1DREERE N TE 2 EF)
stock subscription option - (5,400)
Earnings for the purpose of diluted FTESREE R 2 BT
earnings per share 103,679 135,659
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At 31 March 2009 #Z=—FTNF=A=+—HILFE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

17.

BTSRRI

16. BIREF(4#)

2009 2008
—EThE —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
T TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st ESREREF]Z
for the purpose of basic earnings per share AR ANRE T E 3,333,233 3,209,579
Adjustment for effect of dilutive potential LTRRETEE
ordinary shares: BT
Share options (note a) FERRE (Pff5Ea) 204,537 312,319
Stock subscription option (note b) f&fh RmEE (Fiizkb) - 751
Convertible bonds (note c) AR ES (faEc) - =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ stESREERFZ
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share @A HIEFH 2K 3,537,770 3,522,649

Notes: P &E -

(a) Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of the computation @ HMIAESREERNNE 2 TAERINETHHE
of diluted earnings per share has taken into account the effect of the options with ABE B 2 R E -
dilutive effect.

(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of computation (b) HMEAEESREERNM S 2 SBRNETHHEE
of diluted earnings per share has taken into account the effect of the potential ARITER D REB R EE R TR ZE -
issuance of shares upon exercise of the stock subscription option.

(c) The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the conversion © BREREEHGRRMHABFLIN  WEREER
of convertible bonds for both years as the conversion would result in an increase F 2 5T 8 I 45 R B8 B IR 5% M B 4F [ 2 AT R AR 1
in earnings per share. % o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW =

HK$'000
FAT

At April 1, 2007 RZEZ+FMA—A 133,275

Change in fair value NEES) 85,825

At March 31, 2008 m_;;)\i A=+—8 219,100

Acquired on acquisition of business (note 42(i)) IR S T5FT1S (BdaE426)) 70,301

Change in fair value @i@ii’) 5,726

At March 31, 2009 R-ZFEZNF=A=+—8 295,127

The Group's investment properties are analysed as follows: REEZREMESTMOT -

2009 2008
—EEAE —ETN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Properties held under medium term leases: RAPBEARFAE 2
—in Hong Kong —(IREE 56,400 58,100
—in the PRC — IR 238,727 161,000
295,127 219,100

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

17.

18.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (co

The fair value of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong at March
31,2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at these
dates by Asset Appraisal Limited. The resulting deficit of HK$ 1,700,000 (2008:
surplus of HK$9,000,000) was included in consolidated income statement.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions
for similar properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties in the PRC have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at these dates by CB Richard
Ellis Limited. The resulting surplus of HK$7,426,000 (2008: HK$76,825,000) was
credited to consolidated income statement. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to standard land prices set by the PRC government and comparable
market transactions as available in the locality.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

17.

REME @)

AEBURBEBZREMER_STTNF=A=
+—HZAFEDNREEETERBARA AR
Z% B HE#ETT 2 (R EEB o B ILEA 21,700,000
BITEA(ZZZ N\ F : B#9,000,0007%7T)E 5
ANRB R - HEE2ZHEUMEZ LTS

REBMRPRHZIREYSE 2 A FETIIREH I
BEAARARNZERBRET 2 HEZER - B
W EE A 2 7,426,00078 70 ( —ZZ )\ 4F : 76,825,000/
T0) 2 BHEVIAGLEWRGEE - HEEL2EFEK
JIeRE 2 IZEH B R EH RIS Z AT LETIBR 5 o

AEEEIRBLEBOFFARBESHMER
BAIEE 2 MEERTIARTERE REHR
RABRGCIEREDE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BERRE
Leasehold Machinery  Furniture
land and Construction and and Motor
buildings  Pipelines in progress equipment fixtures vehicles Total
HELH HER HRR
REF BB KEEIR B EEHE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TER THET FHET TET TET
cosT A
At April 1,2007 RZZZ+FNA—H 263,564 1,608,880 922,124 349,071 16,044 85329 3,245,012
Additions RE 28323 49,776 1,066,512 48,763 11,841 24,836 1,230,051
Acquired on acquisition of W B A RIS
a subsidiary - - 1,030 3,137 90 224 4481
Acquired on acquisition of W SRR B RIS
jointly controlled entities 7176 103,075 4,648 1174 212 423 116,708
Acquired on acquisition of WREBME
businesses 48,347 458,720 404,081 49,966 1934 10,833 973,881
Disposals e (7875) - - (5131) (502) (3.796) (17,304)
Reclassification Eiipxs] 83,083 1,000877 (1,116/425) 32,465 - - -
Exchange realignment R 27511 181,762 117,881 35,853 1,508 8,209 372,724
At March 31,2008 R=ZEEN\F=A=1+—H 450,129 3,403,090 1,399,851 515,298 31,127 126,058 5,925,553
Additions NE 13,691 137,488 1,247,3% 90,602 30,157 38,094 1,557,426
Acquired on acquisition of WeEEHE A R
subsidiaries 550 - 28,802 - 78 41 29,841
Acquired on acquisition of W LR BRAE
a jointly controlled entity 1,537 33485 - 757 25 33 35,837
Acquired on acquisition of WX
businesses 697476 231,851 201,104 956,400 35893 20,551 2143275
Disposals e (45,850) = = (8,592) (1467) 6,731) (62,640)
Redlassification Exibx 24959 927,741 (997,509) 44,809 - - -
Exchange realignment ERIEES 27,201 124839 70,995 52093 2623 5,633 283,384
At March 31,2009 RZZTAF=A=+—H 1169693 4858494 1950637 1,651,367 98,436 184049 9912676
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For The Year Ended March 31,2009 #Z—ZEZTNF=A=+—HILtFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 18. W% - BEKRE &)

Leasehold Machinery  Furniture
land and Construction and and Motor
buildings  Pipelines inprogress equipment fixtures vehicles Total
HELTH KER 3953
5% = EE  HEIR #E  EERE AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
DEPRECIATION AND HERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At April 1,2007 RZZZ+FMWA—H 15613 67,040 - 50,588 5,905 22,566 161,712
Provided for the year FRER 13,107 103,653 - 50303 5348 16,972 189,383
Eliminated on disposals HERH (269) - = (1,712) (275) (2,309 (4,565)
Exchange realignment [E 5% 1,091 5,047 - 4443 422 1,744 12,747
At March 31, 2008 R=ZEEN\F=A=1+-H 29,542 175,740 = 103,622 11,400 38973 359,277
Provided for the year ENEHE 43,999 162,685 - 96,023 10,505 20,702 333914
Eliminated on disposals HEERG (24489) - - (4,288) (1,295) (3468) (33,540)
Exchange realignment TS 1,701 6216 - 3,629 439 1,265 13,250
At March 31,2009 RZEZNFE=A=1—H 50,753 344,641 - 198,986 21,049 57472 672,901
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At March 31,2009 RZZTAF=A=+—H 1118940 4513853 1950637 1452381 77,387 126577 9,239,775
At March 31, 2008 R=ZE/\F=A=1+—H 420,587 3,227,350 1,399,851 411,676 19,727 87,085 5,566,276
The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings of the Group shown above REE LA E T REF 2 REERSE
comprises:
2009 2008
—EENF —ZENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
In Hong Kong REE
Long lease REFFAAY 6,080 6,253
In PRC R
Long lease RHEITHAY 278,215 95,774
Medium term lease AR ERTRAY 834,645 318,560
1,118,940 420,587

The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC. REEZHREBLATE -

Lt - BERREER (MREERTRZ))Y
RESEIMR TS FLENE

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the HETHRIEF THABR T FHASC0ER &
remaining terms of the R
leases or 50 years

Pipelines Over the shorter of 30 years or BB RI0FHABAR 2 K&
the operation period of the FHIMEREEE
relevant company

Machinery and equipment 5% — 10% HER R R 5% — 10%

Furniture and fixtures 15% — 50% BMREERE 15% — 50%

Motor vehicles 25% il 25%
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At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

18.

19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

At March 31, 2009, interest capitalised in construction in progress amounted
to HK$99,472,000 (2008: HK$83,693,000).

During the year, the Group is in the process of obtaining title deeds from
relevant government authorities for its land and buildings in the PRC
amounting to HK$64,411,000 (2008: HK$28,737,000). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group is not required to incur additional cost in obtaining the
title deeds for its land and buildings in the PRC.

AtMarch 31,2009, the directors of the Company considered that the leasehold
land element of the buildings with the carrying value of HK$49,324,000 (2008:
HK$40,530,000) cannot be separately identified.

18. 13 ~ BB R & (1)

RZETNF=ZA=+—A0 BREEIREE
AL 2 | B AH99472,0008 T( — BT N\ 4 -
83,693,000/ 7T ) °

RAFE  AEEERHEEE4411,000%8T(=
T T )\4F : 28,737,000/ 70 ) f A R B 2 L ih R 18
FORBBERTHUBEERTEERY - E5R
B RNEBETNS RERFE L REF 2 A #E
LE)MEETEINRA »

RZZEZNF=A=1+—0 AAREZRAE
E1849,324,0007 7T ( ZF = )\ 4F : 40,530,0007 7T )
ZEETFHE T B EES BT

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. BN HEKIE
2009 2008
—EThEF —ZTT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHT
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: N4 @ 2 BT E A B4E
Leasehold land in Hong Kong REBZHEELH
Long lease REFFAAY 21,994 22,182
Leasehold land in the PRC R Rz &L
Long lease REATAY 532,700 120,429
Medium term lease AR ERTRAY 330,554 261,568
885,248 404,179
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BB K Z DT :
Non-current portion JERNERER 869,075 397,301
Current portion BNEREL 7 16,173 6,878
885,248 404,179

The leasehold land and land use rights are charged to income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

During the year, the Group is in the process of obtaining title deeds from
relevant government authorities for its prepaid lease payments in the PRC
amounting to HK$73,425,000 (2008: nil). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group is not required to incur additional cost in obtaining the title deeds for
its prepaid lease payment in the PRC.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRRIZREMR AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 &

HE L K% £ fF BB ARERAEF A
W

FA - ANEBEIEFEEE3425008 (=T
NE - E)NRP Rz ENRERIE - #EBET
AR ARRY - EFRA  A5ETER
A B TE & FRIE 2 FT A LA T = A R AN
B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. ABE N T 2w
2009 2008
—EEAF —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted FERBE R R ZHA—IE LT 618,157 66,402
Share of pre-acquisition dividend AIEUEERTAR S (1,296) (1,296)
Share of post-acquisition profit AIEUEEE R T
(net of dividend received) (FBR U AR ) 156,501 143,617
Discount on acquisition of associates g3 /N i 232,970 5,568
1,006,332 214,291
The Group had interests in the following associates: REBRATHE AR ER
Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation capital by the Group Principal activities
AEBFHM/
#M/RY EEE [BE
ERER £33 7 e hE RAKERI EfELA TEEY
2009 2008
“ZENE ZTT)\&
% %
TREENERARMREAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 22,10 2210 Trading of natural gas
joint venture HE i A RARHE
POEELE
TRERBREREELA Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 19.60 1960 Trading of natural gas
joint venture (notea) (note a)
POMEERE i B B} 19.60 1960  KRARHE
(Wita)  (MzEa)
BRI RRRIEERERAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 44,00 4400 Trading of natural gas,
(JIEMR) joint venture e # A gas pipeline
PG ERE construction and
property investment
RARHE -
BREERR
ROERE
BERREERERNERLA Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 38.69 3869 Exploration, collection
("BESE) joint venture e # A transportation,
PHEERE purification and sales
of natural gas
FEREERAR
EFMALEEARAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 47.83 4783 Trading of natural gas
BRAF joint venture HE # i RARHE
PSR ERE
BREFEMRAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 48.00 - Trading of nature gas and
(‘REETE") joint venture HE e it gas pipeline construction
POEELE RARHER
HREERR

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

Financial Report 2009 8175k &

53



54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #Z =T TNF=A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued

20. RERE QB 2 R (2

Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation capital by the Group Principal activities
FEEAEER/
#W/RY EEE ERTRE
ERER FBREYA % e RAKE R EfEL A TEEH
2009 2008
ZEBhE —TT)\F
% %
BEM=FARIERERAA Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 33.20 - Trading of LPG
company HE # A HELPG
BREFAR
BEESIEERARAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 29.05 - Refining process,
company HE # it storage or LPG
BREEDR RRBE -
BTFFILPG
LT AR ERRERAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered .50 - Salesof fuel oil (except
company H # A hazardous products),
BREFAR instruments, mechanical
and electrical facilities,
construction materials
"}E(T’Eﬁﬁﬁuﬂu)
I8 KERE
BREMRHEE
HEERMBEBRAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 16.60 - Shipping delivery services,
company H # Ay (note b) technical development,
BREFAR (PizHD) providing consultancy
services and agent of
delivery
ERRT - RITFE -
REBEHRER
EHRE
Notes: F&E -

(@) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over this company because it
has the power to appoint two out of the six directors of that company.

(b) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over this company because it
has the power to appoint one out of the three directors of that company.

During the year, a discount on acquisition of HK$227,402,000 arising on
the acquisition of W5 E/&A B has been included in consolidated income
statement. The interest in MAEBEFE as acquired by the Group was
previously owned by IeEEMARBNEEEEEEEEEZEE. The
acquisition of & B/& R BE was required as a result of a tender in August 2007
to PR VE 2 5 P /0. The directors of the Company consider that the sale
of the 48% equity interests in FEREFE by MBEMARBSEBEE
ESEEIEZ B2 was made with an intention of bringing in foreign capital
and expertise in the operation and management of natural gas projects in
the PRC which is in line with the national policy in the PRC.

China Gas Holdings Limited FERRIZRAER AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R FI 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

21.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set

out below:

20. REE DR 2B ()

AEEZBENR B ERBERINT -

2009 2008

—ZTAE —ET)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHAT FAT

Total assets BERE 4,300,311 1,216,139

Total liabilities BfERE (2,023,824) (709,492)
Net assets EEFE 2,276,487 506,647
The Group's share of associates' net assets AEESEHE QR 2 EEFE 1,006,332 214,291
Revenue W e 674,251 283,193
Change in fair value of investment properties &% 2 A EES) (11,306) 264,722
Profit for the year F X 7 11,186 312,412

The Group's share of results AEESEHE AR

of associates for the year REFZELE 12,884 138,013

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Group had interests in the following significant jointly controlled

21. RAEEHER 2 RE

AEERATERAREHEREA#R

entities:
Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation operation capital by the Group Principal activities
=M/ RY  FEEE AEBFEER/ TEEH
ERaE ERRRT & % BRASE R BRTRARELS
2009 2008
“EEhE —TTN\E
% %
I RRBRRERAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 49,0 490 Trading of natural gas
Beijing Jinggang Gas Development joint venture H F i and gas pipeline
Company Limited* PIEBRE construction
(‘Beijing Jinggang’) RARHE
ERRERRAERAR RitREBRR
(“JRRE")
MNP TR R AR AR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 500  Trading of natural gas
joint venture F F i and gas pipeline
RINEERE construction
RARHE
RitREERR
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At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

21.INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continuec

21 MRS R

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of Place of Principal registered/issued
business registration/  place of Class of capital held
Name of entity structure incorporation operation capital by the Group Principal activities
2R EEEE FEEfEER/ TEEH
EEEE ERRRT & % BRASE R ERTRARELS
2009 2008
“BERE —TT\F
% %
MR R ERERAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 500  Trading of natural gas
joint venture F F it and gas pipeline
HINEERE construction
RAREE
RtREBER
HAERSRRRTTARERERAR  Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 500  Trading of natural gas
joint venture H F i and gas pipeline
PIEBRE construction
RARHE
RitREBRR
BT R RERAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 49.0 490 Trading of natural gas
(‘NI joint venture F F i and gas pipeline
HINEERE construction
RAREE
KRR EBER
RPN ER AERRARAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 500  Nature gas refill service
joint venture H F i and gas station
PIEBRE administration
RARMERE
REBMRL
BEFSE{ TARAR Equity joint venture PRC PRC Registered 49.0 490 Purifying technology
(ERSH) REME F F A service of natural gas
KRB R
China Gas - SK Energy Holdings Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50.0 50.0 Trading of natural gas
Company Limited R Ava B B gl and gas pipeline
("China Gas - SK Energy”) construction
RAREE
RtREBER
China Oman Energy Company Incorporated Bermuda Hong Kong Ordinary 50.0 50.0 Development of energy
Limited ("China Oman’) AL ARE B il import projects from
Middle East to PRC
HRREREZRER
ENEE LR
RHEAARARAR Equity joint venture PRC PRC Registered 51.0 510  Trading of natural gas
(RERAR) REME ] FE A RARHE

*

English name is for identification purposes only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 #ZE ==

21.

22.

TNF=RA=+—BILFE

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

As all the major financial and operating decisions of the above entities require
unanimous consent from all venturers, they are accounted for as jointly
controlled entities.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's jointly
controlled entities which are accounted for using proportionate consolidation
with the line-by-line reporting format is set out below:

21. AEFEEFIER 2 RE @)

EEHA:‘ REE Y T EANE R EEREHEENE
BE—REET BB - BUA LD ARG AR
%ll:ét‘%;%;

AEE 2 AREHER 2 MBERHEETIZLIRE
FIER - WATFIZ HIRELEL R :

2009 2008

—ETAF —TTN\EF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHT FHT

Current assets mENEE 625,259 721,065

Non-current assets SEmENEE 2,217,330 1,735,097

Current liabilities mENEE 723,995 648,663

Non-current liabilities EE=E 543,753 315,237

Revenue Wz 969,884 805,340

Profit for the year REZ i A 65,044 131,550
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22, At HERE

2009 2008

SL 1K —zE)\5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at fairvalue ~ MEB_EH 2 BAES - HAF(E 5,272 11,767

Unlisted equity securities, at cost less impairment ~ JE_EFIRRAE S @ K AERIE 33,008 3017

Club debenture, at fair value SES  BATE 3,715 3,592

41,995 18,376

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair value. The fair values of
listed equity securities are based on quoted market bid price. Change in fair
value of the listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments
for the year ended March 31, 2009 with decrease of HK$6,495,000 (2008:
increase of HK$591,000) was recognised in the investment revaluation reserve.
During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Group recognised impairment
loss of HK$ 14,947,000 (2008: nil) to the consolidated income statement.

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Group disposed of
available-for-sale investments with the carrying value of HK$5,570,000 and a
net gain on disposal of HK$1,144,000 was credited to consolidated income
statement.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

RES LT ZBAESTRATFESR o EHRARE
HFZAFEDNRBRZTHEEABERE - REE=
TENF=A=1T—HILFE  wHRERTHRLER
B2 ERAFES 2N FEEE R 64950007 T
(ZZT)\ & : #H1591,000/ 7T ) R I% & & b 1

2o RBE-ETAEZA=+—HILFE ARE
R I 38 5 o AR (E 58149470008 7L (T
N ) o

HEZZZ)\F=A=1+—HLFE  A£ELERE
EE5,570,000% 7T 2 Al H &£ 388 + A 1,144,00078
T2 M EREFEINALGE SR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

23.

Unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC.
Those private entities are engaged in the sales and distribution of LPG in the
PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the balance sheet date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

Club debentures are stated at fair value. Fair value of the club debenture has
been determined by reference to the bid prices quoted in active market. No
fair value change was recognised in both years.

22, A HERE (#)

il A 2 VBT 2 3F LT ARANE 5o B MG
S RERAEBES DR FPCHERH HE
B DREERERADTER R - REAAE
AFEZ 2 BEAA  AAAEFRA - £
AFETR A E -

B %R ATEIE - RFEAR 2 ATES
ELEERDBHBR RRERET - ZWEE
EHLERAATEB -

GOODWILL 23. B8
HK$'000
FHIT
COST BAME
At April 1, 2007 R_ZTZTLFMA—H 299,965
Arising on acquisition of businesses (note 42) EEBNEER (H5T42) 129457
At March 31,2008 RZTTENF=A=1+—H 429,422
Arising on acquisition of businesses (note 42) ELgWEERE (HF42) 204,198
At March 31, 2009 R-ETNFE=ZA=1+—H 633,620
CARRYING AMOUNTS AREE
At March 31, 2009 R-ETNE=A=1+—H 633,620
At March 31, 2008 R_ZFENF=A=+—H 429,422

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and in the financial year
in which the acquisition takes place, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired. Particulars regarding impairment testing on
goodwill are disclosed in note 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24. Htt B EE
Exclusive rights
of natural gas Customer Technical
operations Relationship expertise Total
RARER 2
BRgER EFEBE HIERT #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEr FTiEr THET
CoST RAE
At April 1,2007 RZZEZT+FMA—A 86,111 15,000 - 101,111
Acquired on establishment of A7 HE R4
jointly controlled entities BERME(f5E41)
(note 41) 30,927 - 13,637 44,564
Acquired on acquisition of WEEERB TS
businesses (note 42) (HizE42) 183,742 = = 183,742
At March 31, 2008, RZTENF=A 300,780 15,000 13,637 329417
as restated =+—R(E7))
Acquired on acquisition of a BB A BTG
subsidiary (note 40) (PH7E40) 7,037 - - 7,037
Acquired on acquisition of WIS
businesses (note 42) (PiiEE42) 7,124 = - 7,124
At March 31, 2009 RZZTNEF
=A=t—H 314,941 15,000 13,637 343,578
AMORTISATION ey
At April 1,2007 RZZET+FWPA—H 2,366 294 - 2,660
Charge for the year TR 3] 5,868 1,500 568 7,936
At March 31,2008 KT NF
=—A=+—H 8,234 1,794 568 10,596
Charge for the year BAIER: 3] 10,504 1,500 681 12,685
At March 31,2009 RZZTTAF
EH=a—F 18,738 3,294 1,249 23,281
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At March 31,2009 RZTTNEF
=—A=+—H 296,203 11,706 12,388 320,297
At March 31,2008 RZZTN\EF
=A=+—H 296,546 13,206 13,069 318,821
Note: The exclusive rights of natural gas operation, customer relationship and MisE : RAREBBREEHE  TPBEIZEBERKMTY
technical expertise are amortised on a straight-line method over the period of REGEDRR=+F  +ER=TF 2 HE#
30 years, 10 years and 20 years respectively. Particulars regarding impairment i o BRAE M ST & E 2RER S 2 BB R
testing on other intangible assets are disclosed in note 25. 725 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

25.IMPAIRMENTTESTINGON GOODWILLAND OTHERINTANGIBLE

ASSETS

Management considered each subsidiary represents a separate CGU for the
purpose of goodwill and other intangible assets impairment testing. The
carrying amounts of goodwill, exclusive rights of natural gas operations,

25. BE R HtEREERENHR

BHRER

& BB R EMEREERER SN

5 BMBARRKRBURSELEM - HE

RAREB 2 BRI EHRE -

EFBRERBRERM

customer relationship and technical expertise are allocated as follows: ZIEREESEWT ¢
Exclusive rights
of natural gas Customer Technical
Goodwill operations relationship expertise
RRREHZ
[k B5AeE EFBE SEH
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EERE CTIN\E ZBEAE CIT)\E ZBEAE CTINF ZEEAE CTI)\E
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK000
TEn Tin Tn Thr Tn ThL T Thr
(restated) (restated)
(E31) (E3)
Clever Decision Enterprise Clever Decision Enterprise
Limited Limited 141,716 141,716 - - - - - -
EMERETRERERAA EMRRATRRERARAR
(M) (IR 44,802 4480 - - - - - -
IR R AR AR R R AR AR 15,540 15540 - - - - - -
kG ik 65,981 65981 - - - - - -
Posiive Rise Energy Limited Posttive Rise Energy Limited
(‘ostive Rise') (postive Rise ) 100,086 100086 89,821 9948 - - - -
AEMRAERA BETRAERAR
(MR ([eEHR)) - - 23,804 U0 - - - .
(China ity Natural Gas China City Natural Gas
Investment Limited Investrent Limited
(‘CGNIL) (Tcena)) - - 63,629 65,968 - - - -
AR BAERRR - - 10,784 11,182 - - - =
BRI e - - 3,597 3730 - - - =
MR EERRERAT R EERAERAT
(MRs) (EzikEa) - - 60,885 63234 - - - =
EfiR Sl - - 29811 30842 - - - -
(China Gas Investment China Gas Investment
Development Limited Development Limited
(el (TceL) - - - - 11,706 13206 - -
China Oman (hina Oman - - - - - - 12,388 13,069
HERRE A ERERAT WA AERERAA
(HERE) (Temel) 53,688 - 3,558 - - - - =
Zheflang Zhongyou Hua Dian Energy I HESERERAR
Co.Ltd. (‘Zhongyou Hua Dian’) =) 150,510 - - - - - - -
Other subsidiaries EHEAR 61,297 61,297 10314 - - - - -
633,620 42942) 296,203 292,546 11,706 13,206 12,388 13069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

27.

IMPAIRMENTTESTINGON GOODWILLAND OTHERINTANGIBLE
ASSETS (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are
based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next five years. The CGUs
cashflows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2008:
3%) growth rate for natural gas business and 5% (2008: nil) for LPG business.
The financial budgets and growth rates are estimated according to the stage
of each operation with reference to the development curve of the natural
gas industry in the PRC region. The rates used to discount the forecast cash
flows for CGUs are from 15% to 17% (2008: 15% to 17%). In the opinion of the
directors, no material impairment loss is identified for both years.

25. BERHMERLEERERNR @)

iﬂ%%iﬁﬁz—lEluﬂzfﬁﬁ)'bf%%'ﬁ)ﬂfﬁﬁfg
cHHEFERBEEIERRARBAEEZIH
CERERREHEH R ERKANE - BEER
&59% BRFHE SR 2 MERRSELBAZE
TE R 2 BRI L R AT IR o IR EIRE A
HRERETE - EEEPHRERKAILBEED R
TEHMIS AR 2 BB EE -

REBERBEREMERRAF 2 HM A HTE
HEUASREEE - ERARER RIPGE
i‘%ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ&zfﬁi\?iﬁﬁﬁﬁb.éH\J’\Elﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BEEREIN (ZTT/\F : 3%)R5% (=

G R)EITHE - ﬁﬂ%?ﬁ:ﬁ&%ﬁi)ﬂﬁf«%%
B BREBERE2ERHEME 2 RATITEZ
BREREMET - Fﬁ%%ﬁiﬂljfﬁﬁéiﬁﬁzfﬁﬁ
REWFH EH15%E17% (ZBE )\ F : 15%F
179%) 7% « EZRE ' RZMEFERESAA
WRBAEEE -

LOAN RECEIVABLE 26. EINE
2009 2008
—EERF —ET)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Fixed-rate loan receivable at interest rate AFEFIE 7% B 2 E B
of 7% per annum, unsecured and repayable FEM B R IR AR
after 2 years but not more than 5 years MERIBRFANER ) - 15,000

The amount was denominated in HKS, currency other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities and fully repaid during the year.

SEABT (AR AAEEEREEE 2 E
5 - IEE"EW%%ZE

INVENTORIES 27. 78
2009 2008
—ZTAE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Construction materials M 113,329 231,546
Consumables, spare parts and coke materials  SEFESA @1 BRI B 59,364 38,932
Natural gas KRR 25,992 15,052
LPG LPG 342,213 -
540,898 285,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

28. B (B EFZEHNIRNE

2009 2008
ZEZAF —ZTT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHTT
Contracts in progress at balance sheet date: REERZEETIR
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BER1G 2 & KB E TR
profits less recognised losses s AR E R 1R 527,111 391,350
Less: Progress billings B R (428,861) (120,171)
98,250 271,179
Analysed for reporting purposes as: VE2FRABR DT
Amounts due from customers for contract work & £ L1227 FEYE F 718 219,993 283,426
Amounts due to customers for contract work A% T2 Z B R HIE (121,743) (12,247)
98,250 271,179

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, there was no retention monies held by
customers for contract work performed. At March 31, 2009, advances
received from customers for contract work amounted to HK$258,592,000
(2008: HK$230,340,000) which were included in trade and other payables in
note 34.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Group recognised losses of
HK$36,864,000 (2008: HK$79,623,000) in respect of contract costs incurred.
The directors of the Company reviewed the recoverable amounts of contract
costs incurred and identified certain projects are unlikely to be completed in
foreseeable future. In the opinion of directors of the Company, the amounts
are unlikely to be recovered from its customers and accordingly, losses are
recognised in full in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 7R &R I EE

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other than certain major customers with good repayment history which the
Group allows a longer credit period or settlement by instalment basis, the
Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 180 days to its trade
customers.

29. B 5 FE W iR R % HL i FE LK BRI

BETHREHRR G2 T ERFEANEEENE
BREEHRSBAFIN AEE—RAEES
BERMEF1530-180H 22 EH »

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of impairment losses REBRE R - B HEBERRFORRERE) 2K
at the reporting date: BT -
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ETN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHAT
0- 180 days 0-180H 344,066 271,250
181 - 365 days 181-365H 92,333 67,857
Over 365 days 365H A 219,375 141,809
Total trade receivables before RitEEIZES
accumulated allowances AR 4 FE 655,774 480916
Less: Accumulated allowances B Bt (146,079) (79,187)
Trade receivables B KRS 509,695 401,729
Deposits paid for construction and other materials T2 & E i E i€ 75,134 77,027
Deposits paid for purchase of natural gas and LPG BB RARKLPGE fH&E 130,983 81,825
Advance payments to contractors BN FEBREZ KA 105,806 72477
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HhpEUERIE « e RFBMAFIE 328,528 219,271
Amounts due from minority shareholders FELHTE AR D88
of subsidiaries B FIE 70,155 40,506
Amounts due from shareholders of jointly FEU L R B
controlled entities AR FRIE 65,397 42,880
1,285,698 935,715

The trade receivables with carrying amount of HK$344,066,000 (2008:
HK$271,250,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date for
which the Group believes that the amounts are considered recoverable.

The Group has policies for allowance of bad and doubtful debts which are
based on the evaluation of collectability and age analysis of accounts and on
the management’s judgment including the credit creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Group made an allowance of
HK$53,883,000 (2008: HK$57,190,000) in respect of the trade receivables,
which was past due at the reporting date with long age and slow repayments
were received from respective customers since the due date. The directors
of the Company considered the related receivables may be impaired and
specified allowance is made.

BR 1 {8344,066,0008 T2 B HRUWEREHF(ZEZ
J\EE : 271,250,0009%8 7T ) 7 BR 3 B B I #8480 HA = o
BRE - AEEREZERIEERARKE o

AEE 2 RBRBHEBRTVRBER FIRRK R 2
AHERREZ RS - LRBEEEHEES
FEP 2 EREN RYGRERZ HEf o

REE-_ZTAF=A=+—HBILFER K&
B 5t 2 5 e U BR 7R 1E H153,883,000/8 T ( —Z TN\
£ 1 57,190,000/ 7T ) 2 B - RAAZZEFIER
ERACHY  HERARBEEEFBXARAB
HAAR 2 BRGRE RS - ARRIESRABHE
IRk SR E - WIEE R e R -

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRIERER AT  Financial Report 2009 B 153k &

63



64

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuec

29. B 5 FE Uk iR K % HL it B KRR ()

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIBRBE 2 &
2009 2008
—EThE —ETTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHT
Balance at the beginning of the year FHEEER 79,187 20,201
Exchange differences PE X =%8 13,009 1,796
Charge for the year REF R 53,883 57,190
Balance at the end of the year FAR ISR 146,079 79,187

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group considers
any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit
was initially granted up to the reporting date. The trade receivables past due
but not provided for impairment were either subsequently settled as at the
date of this report or no historical default of payments by the respective
customers. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer
base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are debtors, with a carrying amount
of HK$165,629,000 (2008: HK$ 130,479,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amount are still considered recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these trade receivable is 320 days (2008: 310 days) as at March 31, 2009.

In respect of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired at the
respective balance sheet date, the aged analysis from due date is as follows:

HEE BB RRE T W R - AEEEEEE
HRBIERZ EREREEENASEERES
R B E AR 2 (R B o BEMERIEHREZ
B P RYERRE IR RN AR E HREER - &
BRI EBERRERLHZIES - HREFE
HBEBRARLNEE  WERETRBAR - &
It AABEFREBARRBERBEAINE—
FIERERER -

AEEZE 5 EWRR T BIEREE65629,000
BT B S RBERF (=TT /\F : 130,479,000/
UL ZEFEREBERAHEEE - ARKEER
BEEEEAREERNE L BSBEIWEBRAIIKRE M
AR c AKBWERZEEBRFEEEM
TR -RZTEZNF=ZA=1+—8 %585
UCBR RN 2 FI9BRIE A3208 (Z BT \%E:310H) °

RERZEEHERRERIIEREZ B S BEIR
A HBEEERA R ZREROITNT

2009 2008

—EEhF —TENEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

180 — 365 days 180-365H 92,333 67,857
over 365 days 365H A E 73,296 62,622
165,629 130,479

Amounts due from minority shareholders of subsidiaries and shareholders of
jointly controlled entities are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fTESRT A
2009 2008
—EThE —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Derivative financial assets: PTESMEE :
Current B
Interest rate range accrual swap transactions NI A BIRIEALHETEIEZ
not qualified for hedge accounting P = E ReHE HZ 5 - 8,362
Early redemption option embedded AHARR(E H M5 2 $R Al
in convertible bonds (note 38 (ii)(c)) BB (HMiEE3sine) 1,261 2614
1,261 10,976
Derivative financial liabilities: PTESRMALE
Non-current IEREB
Interest rate range accrual swap transactions NI A BIRIEBLD P ETEIE Y
not qualified for hedge accounting MEEHERH=HIRZ 5 360,087 -
Current B
Embedded conversion option (note 38 (i)(b))  Mi#sHapssE (B EE38ib)) 782 4264
360,869 4,264

Interest rate range accrual swap transactions

HEHERHEHR S

Major terms of the outstanding interest rate swap transactions as at March 31,
2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Notional amount

P
RMB2,000,000,000

in aggregate
& AR%2,000,000,00070

US$200,000,000
in aggregate

£ ££200,000,0003 7T

Maturity dates
F#8A

From September 4, 2011
to December 12,2011
H=T——FNANAZE
—T——Ft+=ZA+=H

From October 12,2010
toJune 13,2011

H=T-ZF+A+=RZE
—T——%XA+=H

Pay leg
e S

6.60% - 6.65%

6.60E £6.65F2

From USD LIBOR +
0.60% to USD LIBOR

+2.35%
BT EERTTRZER S E+

060EEXTTMBRITREREE

+235

The net fair values of the outstanding interest rate transactions are measured
at the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted bases on the

applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.

R-ZZNAER_ZENF=A=+—H " K3
M X R 57 TGO ¢

Receive leg

WD

Relative movement of 2-year,
10-year and 30-year USD swap rates
25 10F R30FFRTTIIFE 2
S

Relative movement of 2-year,
10-year and 30-year USD swap rates

2F  10F RI0FETEHFE
TR

REMFERZ 5 2 NP FETHIRAR R E A RE
KPS Was HARREIR 2 At R IR &R 2 BRE

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Derivatives embedded in convertible bonds

Embedded conversion option represents the fair value of the bondholders’
option to convert the convertible bonds issued on June 29, 2005 (as detailed
in note 38) into equity of the Company.

Early redemption option represents the fair value of the Company’s option to
early redeem in respect of convertible bond issued on June 29, 2005.

The fair value of the embedded conversion and early redemption option are
calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

30. fTE SR T A ()

ABRRER ZHEITETA

M EEEs AL ZERF A+
NBBETZABREES (R E38)ERABAR
AN 2 B E 2 A FE

TRl C AR RHRAIE RN —E T AFRA
ZTABRBETZARRES R EEZ NTE

B4R i R SR A B4 2 AP E TR N e -
TR —BRESREERAHE - B 2BAK
FIATE ¢

31.

Embedded Early
conversion option redemption option
Wi RRE RAREE
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZZENE —TT\& BN —ZTNE
Conversion price/redemption SH(E /ERE/
price/exercise price (8 HK$1.731 BT HK$1.731 7T HK$1.210 38 7T HKS$1.996 T
Expected volatility (note a) BHRE (k) 51.27% 70.72% 51.27%
Expected life (note b) EHES () 1.25 years 025 years 1.25 years & 025 years &
Risk free rate (note ¢) EmBFIE (o 131% 0.51% 131%
Notes: P&

(a) Expected volatility for early redemption option was determined by calculating
the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over 250 trading days; for
embedded conversion option was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over 250 trading days.

(b) Expected life was the expected remaining life of the respective options.

(c) Therisk free rate is determined by reference to the Hong Kong Government Bond
Yield.

During the year, HK$366,320,000 (2008: HK$166,884,000) was recognised as a change
in fair value of derivative financial instruments.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(@) FRATHEEME 2 FRERIE TSR E AR A R 2 IR E 250
B2 5 B 2 BE 28 08 i w58 i st B 25 3R AR A
T EHRERE S EA AR Z BRER2501ER 5 B
2SR IR ESE

b) FEEERFHEENE L EAHTFS -

© ERBRAEDESEFBBNESELEEE -

FA 366,320,000 7T ( =T Z )\ F : 166,884,000/ 70 ) &
BRAETESBMT A AFEES -

31. R B & A B TR IE

2009 2008

—ZTAF —TTN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Non-current portion (note a) IEmEER o (Miska) 68,966 =
Current portion (note b) manEso (Kiskb) 243,250 158,617
312,216 158,617

Notes:

(@) The balance is unsecured, interest bearing at 5.31% per annum and repayable on
June 1, 2010.

(b) Included in balance amount of HK$76,264,000 (2008: nil) is unsecured, interest
bearing at 5.31% to 6.93% per annum and repayable within a year. The remaining
balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HIEFE

32.

33.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 2. BFEERE
2009 2008
—EEThE —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Listed securities at fair value RATFEHEZ LTHES

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —RBEB LM ZRAES 11,460 42,074
— Equity securities listed in the PRC — AR B £ 2 IRANTE 5 84 =
11,544 42,074

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and carry
interest at market rates which range from 0.03% to 1.21% per annum (2008:
0.03% to 2.63% per annum).

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to HK$847,759,000 (2008:
HK$164,597,000) have been pledged to secure short-term bank loans and
undrawn facilities and are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.81% to 3.42% (2008: 1.5% to 3.5%)
per annum.

The details of the Group's pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash
which are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the respective group entities are set out below:

33. BEARITER RITEEFRES

ROTEFRASEEAEERE 2HE RREAR
=18 A AEHE 2 REIRITIFR - REF003E1.21
B(ZZZT)\F : §F0035263F) ZFIRHE °

EIRIRRITERIEANERE TAEE ZRITHE
MK FER1T 217 5K © 847,759,000 L( =T =
J\EF : 164,597,000%8 7T ) Z K EAEE ARG K&
HMIRITERRARDZHE  AtH5EARRESHE
E- - BEEARRTEFEIREFSERINE(ZF
ENE  BFI15FE35E) 2FKEFE -

AEERSEREEER ZINEEEUINZINE
FHEZ EERBITERRAERITEFLRE ZF
EEIAT

usD HK$
Ev BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TFHT
equivalent
EEER
At March 31, 2009 R-ZBTAF=A=+—H 373,531 11,895
At March 31, 2008 R-_BEENEF=A=+—H 51,408 5672
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At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HIEFE

34.

35.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases
and ongoing costs. The following is an aged analysis of trade and other

payables at the reporting date:

34. EZ EARA R KB RRIR

BIRNEREEMENRBESEE S ERE RS
BAZREEHE - RRBRER - BHEMNER

AREMENEREZ REEATAT

2009 2008
—ETAF —ETNF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FAT
0-90 days 0-90H 1,142,836 234,247
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 119,262 31,311
Over 180 days 1808 A E 249,131 94,110
Trade and bill payables B I ENERRENER 1,511,229 359,668
Other payables and accrued charges Hfth pEA BRTA KBRS 499,483 569,314
Advanced payments from customers RERFE ZERGIE 186,196 164,772
Advances received from customers for BERERELZAEHNIRES
contract works that have not WER 2 EA 3R
yet been started 258,592 230,340
Amounts due to minority shareholders RN
of subsidiaries f& SR TE 99,745 24,558
Deferred cash consideration for REBEEB 2 BER R E
the acquisition of businesses 48,068 -
2,603,313 1,348,652

Amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

ENHBARDBERFBRSEER 28 REA

REREFEE -

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35. RITREMEE
2009 2008
—EThE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT

Bank and other borrowings RIT R EH A
comprise the following: e :

Bank loans RITER 7,741,596 5471132
Trust receipt loans ErEBIRER 1,586,521 -
Mortgage loan RIBERK 11,904 14,416
Other bank loans HEMIRITER 669,138 =
Other loans HEER 288,763 295,967
10,297,922 5,781,515
Secured HHEAA 7,563,605 4,528,197
Unsecured IR 2,734,317 1,253,318
10,297,922 5,781,515

Other bank loans represent the loans from discounting of intercompany

receivables with full recourse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R FI 5T

At 31 March 2009 #Z=—FTNF=A=+—HILFE

35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 35. RITREMBEE (&

The maturity profile of the above loans is as follows:

ERERZBEERNT

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ETN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHAT
On demand or within one year ﬁ@gfﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’\\\—iﬁqﬁﬁ 3,103,855 157,061
More than one year, but not exceeding two years %R —F B BBMRF 355,753 205,922
More than two years, but not exceeding five years % NEENERRF 2,430,918 899,345
More than five years ZREE 4,407,396 4,519,187
10,297,922 5,781,515
Less: Amount due within one year shown under & : —FRF ‘JHﬁWAm@J
current liabilities BEZH (3,103,855) (157,061)
Amount due after one year —FEEIH 2 K 7,194,067 5,624,454
Borrowings comprise: fEEaE :
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 7,392,080 4,714,191
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE 2,905,842 1,067,324
10,297,922 5,781,515

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted

AEEREZERFIRZ SEGBFEFTHMX)

interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows: s
2009 2008
—EETAF —TT)N\F
Effective interest rate per annum: ERFEF=E
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE 2.10%-7.83% 2.10% - 7.83%
Floating-rate borrowings REEE 3.56% - 8.00% 417% - 7.83%
The details of the Group's borrowings which are denominated in currencies ANEER L AHEEE TR LB AN Z I

other than the functional currency of the respective group entities are set

out below:

FHEZEEZFHBHIIAT

EUR uUsD JPY

Bt £ AE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT FAT

equivalent equivalent equivalent

HER HER HEER

At March 31, 2009 RZZEThF=A=1+—H 22,907 3,434,058 47,479
At March 31, 2008 RZZETN\F=A=+—H = 1,913,753 44,574
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R FI 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HIEFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR
Convertible
Ordinary shares preference shares Total
EER TAREER &t
No. of shares No. of shares
000 HK$ 000 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
Tk THT Tk THT THT
at HKS0.01 at HK$1.00
each each
SkmE SkEE
001787T 100/87T
Authorised EE 9,000,000 90,000 124,902 124,902 214902
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
At April 1,2007 R=ZZEZ+FMA—A 3,096,204 30962 = - 30,962
Issue of new ordinary shares BT ERR
(notes aand b) (Miztakb) 178230 1,782 = = 1782
Exercise of share options (note 47) Gl MGOEIY) 57,010 570 = = 570
At March 31, 2008 R-ZEEN\F=A=1+-A 3331444 33314 - - 33314
Exercise of share options (note 47) ERERE (Fisks7) 2170 2 - = 2
At March 31,2009 R=ZETNF=A=1+—-R 3333614 33,336 - - 33,336
Notes: P &E -

(@) On May 22, 2007, pursuant to the subscription letter dated October 29, 2003,
the Company issued a total of 7,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at a price of HK$1.128 per share to ML (as defined in note 38(i)). Details
of the subscription letter are set out in note 38(i).

(b) During the year ended March 31, 2008, the bondholders of the Bond (as defined
in note 38 (ii)) have converted part of the Bond into 171,230,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.731 per share.

The shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

37. AMOUNTDUETOAMINORITY SHAREHOLDEROF ASUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at 2% per annum and repayable in
year 2013. Accordingly, the amount is classified as a non-current liability as at
the balance sheet date.
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@ R=-ZEZTLFRA=1+=A BEBHAE=-TT=
F+AZTNBZREE - ARRIREGRI.128E T
174 7,000,000l AN A A1 FAREE0.01 78T 2 il
B8 F = (E 2 R KT EE380)) © 3RBE k2 I E A M
5£38() °

b)) RBEE—TZENE=ZA=+—BILFE  EFNE
HEH A (EE B HREs) A BRESR 73178 7T
B IR E S &5 A171,230,00008 N2 B AR EE0.01
BT i o

RERBTZBRORAETHERERNHZER
SRR -

I BARDBRR 2RI

ZHORREER - EMNF BT ERAR T~
=FEE - Bt ZFERBEERRIIBIERE
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At 31 March 2009 BE=—TZThNF=A=+—HILFE

(i)

(ii)

The Company entered into a subscription letter on October 29, 2003 with
Merill Lynch ("ML") pursuant to which the Company granted to ML, the
rights to subscribe for new shares of the Company (the “Letter”). Under
the terms of the Letter, ML would have a right to subscribe for new shares
up to 15% of the principal amount of each tranche of the convertible
bonds (“the ML Bonds") pursuant to a subscription agreement dated
on October 29, 2003 (“the Agreement”) issued divided by 0.94 with a
subscription price of HK$1.128 per share (subject to adjustments). The
subscription rights are exercisable by ML at any time from and including
the date of issue to the maturity date of the relevant tranche of the ML
Bonds. The maturity dates are October 30, 2008 and October 30, 2009
for the ML Bonds issued on November 13, 2003 and June 10, 2004,
respectively. All of the ML Bonds issued under the Agreement had been
either converted or redeemed during the two years ended March 31,
2005. The stock subscription rights are fully exercised by ML during the
year ended March 31, 2008.

On June 23, 2005, the Company entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with CQS Convertible and Quantitative Strategies Master
Fund Limited (“CQS") and Courtenay Enterprises Limited (“Courtenay”),
independent third parties of the Group, whereby CQS and Courtenay
subscribed the USD denominated Bonds (“the Bond") issued at par by
the Company in an aggregate principal amount of US$40,000,000. The
Bond was issued on June 29, 2005 (“the Issue Date”) and carries interest
at 1% per annum and is matured on June 29, 2010. The conversion price
of the Bond is HK$1.7310 and can be converted at any time on or after
Issue Date up to June 19, 2010. Unless previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be redeemed at 127.070 per
cent of their principal amount on June 29, 2010. All or some of the Bonds
may be redeemed at the option of the relevant holder on June 29, 2008
at 115.314 per cent of their principal amount. The Bond are listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2562) on June 1, 2006.

The net proceeds received from the issue of convertible bonds contain
the following components that are required to be separately accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”:

(@) Liability component of the Bond represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the rate of interest at that time by the market to instruments
of comparable credit status and providing substantially the
same cash flows, on the same terms, but without the conversion
and redemption option. The effective interest rate of the liability
component determined on initial recognition is 4.5% per annum.

(i)

RZTE=F+A=-+NB  NAFREEHK
([EMDETLRE R - Bt - ARFMA
EMREHRBAR RN 28R (%K
D) RBEZREZER REBHAE=
TE=Ft+A-tTHhBZREHREZH
#) EMEEERBEESR128FT(H

FHRAE)REEZ AT ATRRES ([ EWE
% ) NS 58 15%B% BA0.94 2 #ARAD o FEMAT R
BBz EMBESF 2ETHH(BEEZR)
REFHBE IE 2 FRRITERERE - R =
EE=F+—H+= E&_Yémi/\ﬁ+
El?éﬁZ%Wa%%zi\ HADRAE=-ZTT

F+A=+AK=TTAF+A=FH- B/‘
HE= f§£57ﬂ7+79¢2ﬁml¢r
A RIBZ BRI ZBENESFDENL
B iER - RBEZE—_TENF=A=+—H
IEFE - BOREED EENERITE -

RZFTRFRNAZT=H - ARFHECQS
Convertible and Quantitative Strategies Master
Fund Limited ([CQS]) &Courtenay Enterprises
Limited ([ Courtenay ) (MEHABIE=7)
1M B G REE B - 1R CQS Kk Courtenay
BB AN BRI {E 317 48 78 & %8 /340,000,000
ETZUETEER(ER] - BHFERZ
TTRFANAZTABET(ETAD @ 1%

EFEIEHFETR_BE—ZESNA=1TA
HEIH - 55 2 @R ER1.731087T  AIA
BTRBRE T —TE X A+ N BHREMA

B o RIFEREER - EBRREEY
i BAEBFRBER=_Z—ZTF AT
BiR A& 58127.070%E B - EHEHH AINA
BEN-_ZTEN\FENA-TABRRESAS
F115314%BRIE 2 KB D - EBHFR_-Z
TRENA—BRERAT EM(BEHRR -
2562) °

BT A Z SR F R BIE A T K
- BERBEBGHEAEDR /T
B BERE2IREBGHELFER 2
BMTE : ERREIBIAR:

@ BFRZABEXOEEHNMEZRRERE S
ﬁ%?ﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁf%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂ*
B AR MBS AR K i (0] 7 I R 45 K BUE
ﬂB‘Ufﬁﬁmiﬂ’\],ﬁﬁ%i%Zmiﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁ
THBRZRNEE ROTEIRHEE
FRDEETE 2 BRRFIZE K452 -
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At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

38. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continuec

(b) Embedded conversion option of the Bond to be accounted for as a
separate financial liability represents the fair value of the option to
convert the liability into equity of the Company.

(c) Embedded early redemption option of the Bond represents
the Company’s option to early redeem all or part of the Bond by
bond holder on or before June 19, 2010 at the conversion price of
HK$1.7310

(d) Mandatory redemption option of the Bond represents redemption
at the option of the bond holders on June 29, 2008 at 115.314 per
cent of the principal amount of the Bond.

The movement of different components of the convertible bonds during the
year is set out below:

38. Al AR B (&
) BUAERE A FEIRZ ES 2 iR

BEEERAAAAARER R ERE
DFE -

MR E R ER XA ARIBESRES
ARZZE—ZTFNA+NBHRZATAE
H{E1. 73108 IR R E R 2 Pk SR ES
BRI o

BHFE 2 RHBRERRERESHEALZ
BEER_ZEZNEFENA-THLBUES
REFE115314%#ET 2 HED] o

FAFRRESRZ NRKD 2 EEHIINT

Embedded

Early Mandatory

conversion redemption redemption

Liability option option option Total
fi#s RATEE  REIEE

=0 BB BERE BERE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T T T

At April 1, 2007 RZZET+FHWA—H 273457 52,502 (15,865) 1,412 311,506
Change in fair value NEEES) - 190,606 (25,981) (1,412) 163,213
Exercise during the year RERNTTHE (260,362) (238,844) 39,232 (459,974)
Interest charged (note 10) FMEXZHE (HEE10) 1,781 - - - 1,781
Interest paid B FE (542) - - - (542)
At March 31, 2008 RZZBZNF=A=1+—H 14,334 4264 (2,614 = 15,984
Change in fair value NEEEE - (3/482) 1,353 = (2,129)
Interest charged (note 10) FESZE (H5E10) 645 - - - 645
Interest paid BFE (156) = = = (156)
At March 31, 2009 —ETNF=A=1+—H 14,823 782 (1,261) = 14,344

China Gas Holdings Limited FERRIZRAEMR AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 ¥ &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR Z< i 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

38.

39.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

From June 4, 2007 to September 19,2007 (“1st batch conversion”) and November
23,2007 (“2nd batch conversion”), the bond holders exercised their conversion
options with the principal amount of US$26,000,000 and US$12,000,000 of
the Bonds respectively. The fair values of the embedded conversion and early
redemption option were calculated by using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

38.

AHBRES (2

HB-_ZT+FNANBE-_ZZ+FEAA+IE
(ME—#EgR )R _ST+F+—A=+=A(F
e ) EEBEASRITEASES A
26,000,0003% 7T }212,0000003< J© Z & % Fff % 2 i
BRAE - B MR i R IR AR B4 2 A FE A A
7 — AR — IR T BRI E - AKE
NZEIRMT -

Embedded Early
conversion option redemption option
i 755 45 AR 12 A Bl 4
2nd batch 1st batch 2nd batch 1st batch
conversion conversion conversion conversion
FE_#tEia F—HtER ETHMER F—HER
Share price at conversion A 2 RE HK$338  HK$262-3.52 HK$338  HK$262-352
Conversion price/redemption price BRE EEE HK$1.731 HK$1.731 HK$1.996 HK$1.996
Expected volatility TERIE 47.20% 46.10% 47.20% 46.10%
Expected life TRETEH 0.60 years 0.72 years 0.60 years 0.96 years
Risk-free rate EEBRA = 235% 442% 235% 442%
Fair value at conversion (in HK$'000) R A TE (FET) 83,542 155,302 9,468 29,764
DEFERRED TAXATION 39. JEFERIE

The following is the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements
thereon during the current and prior reporting years.

AT BN F B KAl R 3RS 2 2 B ERIRT
HEEE(EE)ARBRES) -

Impairment
Revaluation on on trade
property, receivables
Revaluation plantand and amounts
Accelerated on equipmentand due from
tax investment  prepaid lease Tax Intangible  customers for
depreciation properties payments losses assets  contract work Total
fel
VES EFRHIE
MEHE & RRBREM ZE5EN
ik NEEfR HENRER HEkE BREE RAAE @5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T THL T T T T T
At April 1, 2007 RZZZ+EMA-R 49 1878 - (237 3860 - 3860
Acquisition of ajointly controlled BB RIFEHIEER (Fizkar)
entity (note 41) - - - - 637 - 637
Acquisiton of businesses (note 42)  WEEEH (fitzEa) - - 31,190 - 53,240 . 84430
(Creclit) charge to consolidated ERRGANER
income statement for the year (B%) Mk (22) 20781 20%) (1553) (885) (34203) (17977)
At April 1, 2008, originally stated R=ZZ\EWA—-A (EEF5) 47 2659 29095 (3929) 56852 (34,203) 70950
Acquisition of ajointly controlled BB RIFEHIEE (Fizkar)
entity (note 41) - - - - 709 - 7,09
Acquisition of businesses (noted2)  WEEER (fifzE42) - - = = (7304 = (7304
At April 1, 2008, as restated RZZZ\EMA—-H (E5) an 20659 29095 (3925) 56,643 (34203) 70,741
Acquisition of businesses (note42)  WEEERS (FiizF42) - - 160314 - 1780 - 16209
(Creclit) charge to consolidated ERRGANER
income statemen for the year (B%) Mk (1) 1575 (4421) 283 (1973) (22687) (27204)
At March 31,2009 RZZENE=A=1-H 471 24234 184988 (3642) 56450 (56890) 205611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SR Z= Fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

39. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

39. IRFERIE ()

REERBERZIME @ & TEEHAEERE
BETHEY - R T AR BREM 5 < BEHH
KEEROAT

2009 2008

—ZTAE —TT)N\EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 56,890 34,203
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBE & (262,501) (104,944)
(205,611) (70,741)

At March 31, 2009, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
HK$846,411,000 (2008: HK$520,802,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$22,073,000
(2008; HK$22,428,000) of the tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised for the remaining estimated tax losses of HK$824,338,000 (2008:
HK$498,374,000) due to the uncertainty of future profits streams. Included
in unrecognised estimated tax losses are losses of HK$278,085,000 (2008:
HK$141,709,000) that will expire in 5 years from the year of origination.
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22,073,000/ 70( = T J\ 4 : 22,428,000/ 7T ) Z
FIEESEERECHBEE - ARARAASERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R I 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ADDITIONAL INTEREST
IN A SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of assets through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009

(0]

(ii)

On August 7, 2008, the Group acquired 90% equity interest in 5S35 5EEH
ARARFEBR AR (S2EHEE B ") for RMB19,267,000 (equivalent
to HK$22,145,000). 5Z5ERE A has not commenced business at the

date of acquisition.

40. W BT 2 B R AR IR F B 1 B 2 R

REZBZENFEBRBHBEARRB2EE

(0]

TNENREHR ZEENUARKE
19,267,0007T (HEE 122,145,000/ 70 ) W iE S 28
EEAARARFREERAR(SEEAAD
MW AHER - RIREEE B - SEHEH A M

HK$’000
FET
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED FruiE FEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRE 20,735
Prepaid lease payments BRI EERRK 5,430
Inventories FE 55
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIAS 4
Other payables E b fERTARIE (1,618)
24,606
Minority interests DHR R ER (2,461)
22,145
SATISFIED BY XAHFERX
Cash consideration BHERE 22,145
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING HWEmEEZ
ON ACQUISITION REREFE
Cash paid ENES (22,145)
Bank balances and cash acquired R g 2 SRITEGFE RS 4
(22,141)

On August 4, 2008 and August 22, 2008, the Group entered into
agreements with two independent third parties pursuant to which the
Group subscribed for 50% interest in ZEERHPRAREREGRA
& ("BE ") for RMB11,000,000 (equivalent to HK$12,222,000) and
acquired further 25% interest in ZE )& from the two independent
third parties for a consideration of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$8,889,000) respectively. EE & has not commenced business at

the date of acquisition.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

(i)

RZZFEZENFNANBE=_ZEZENFNAZ
+-H AEBEMBBILE =L
% BRI RSB LA A R #11,000,0007T (48 &
712,200000% 7T ) REE B RXR RAARER
BRARNEERF ) 50%Ezs * WARE
AR #£8,000,0007T (18E 728,889,000/ 7T ) i —
FIRBEERT 25 %ED - RIKEEHR » =
ERPEARERELRS -
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At 31 March 2009 #E—ZTZNF=A=+—HILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ADDITIONAL INTEREST
IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Acquisition of assets through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009

40. W BB I R N B % S A B B 8 B 2 MR ()

REZZNFEBUBRBLARANBCEE

(continued) ()
HK$’000
FET
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED e 2 FEE
Property, plant and equipment LE Y 9,106
Prepaid lease payment TEfEER K 836
Intangible assets — exclusive rights of EREE - RARARBRIECE R
natural gas operations 7,037
Inventories ey 1,855
Other receivables H b fE U BRIR 4,486
Bank balances and cash SRITHEERIRS 2,672
Other payables H AR ARIE (10,066)
15,926
Cash injection by the Group AEBZEESEE 12,222
28,148
Minority interests DEIR R (7,037)
21,111
SATISFIED BY XAHER
Cash consideration HERE 8,889
Cash injection to ZE & & MEERHZESTE 12,222
21,111
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING HUEmEEZ
ON ACQUISITION ReRHFE
Cash paid BEfIRE (8,889)
Bank balances and cash acquired P ig 2 SRTTHEFERIRE 2,672
(6,217)

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRRIZRAEMRAT  Financial Report 2009 #1745 &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 15 =R R FI 5T

At 31 March 2009 #ZE ==

TNF=RA=+—BILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ADDITIONAL INTEREST

41.

IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition of assets through establishment of a subsidiary in 2008

On May 21,2007, the Group established a subsidiary in the PRC, namely &%
FIRARAR AR AR (RDHFFL") which the Group owns 70% issued share
capital. The Group contributed the capital in cash of US$1,847,000 and the
minority shareholder injected capital in cash of RMB1,608,000 and property,
plant and equipment into KA R,

40. WRB K 2 B R B AR P B A B 2 AR (8

REZZBNFEBRIMBARKNEBZ2EE

RZZEZTLFRA=1+—R8  AEERPHZRIL
—fA Bﬁ%@?%ﬁ?kﬁsi%aﬁﬁ&@?(f%ﬂﬂ
BR1) o ANSEEEH H70%E BITARAN o A4 E A
IRE 3 E1,847,0003 7T © AR E BIAZE
& AR ¥E1,6080007C RIAMIE « HE RFZHERK
DHRBESE ©

HK$'000
FHTT
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED Rz REE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRR 4,481
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERRE 1,641
6,122
Cash injection by the Group AEEZREEER 14,286
Minority interest DHRRRER (6,122)
Total consideration wBAR(E 14,286
SATISFIED BY FTAAR
Cash injection to =/ FR IR MERDHRZIREFE 14,286
NET CASH INFLOW ARISING ON ACQUISITION WEMELEZRLSAANTE
Bank balances and cash acquired FriiE < SR1THTF RIS 1,641

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary in 2008

On January 15, 2008, & #4, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with independent third party in relation to
the acquisition of the remaining 10% equity interest of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary, BEPRRTRRER A F (‘BE%PR), at a total
consideration of RMB315,000. Discount on acquisition arising from the
acquisition of additional interest in & A is HK$108,000.

ACQUISITION OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Establishment of a jointly controlled entity in 2009

On August 31, 2008, a jointly controlled entity, China Gas — SK Energy, which
the Group owns 50% issued share capital, established a jointly controlled
entity in the PRC, namely ®EHMRE BHEEMTMRERER QA
("&ZERPR"), which China Gas — SK Energy owns 50% issued share capital.
China Gas — SK Energy contributed the capital in cash of RMB70,000,000
(equivalent to HK$80,269,000) and the other shareholder contributed the
capital in the form of assets and liabilities. The assets and liabilities contributed
by the other shareholder enables & #A to continue the operation of
the existing natural gas business which the other shareholder previously
engaged. This transaction has been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting.
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41.

REBZEN\FRBHEQR 2B

RZEENFE—A—A ' ARF2EWBRARE
MARREE Y E = R EIEE EH B AR SS
PR TR AR R T[T 10%0%
] % - BRERARK3150007T °
HERESR G R IR Z f s T = A 2 W 4T 78 A108,000
I °

Wi EEFIEE
REZZNFRIUAFZSER

RZTEZENEFENA=+—8 - China Gas SK Energy
(ﬁ’;lﬁEESO%Eﬁﬁﬁx$Z ZHIERE)R
s AV %‘Jiﬁ“%i‘?l"*x A FE RE A T
i”?ﬁﬁﬁ‘@ﬁﬁﬁ AT ZFEF W) » China Gas-SK
Energy® & 1 #E B 50%2 BT AL AN © China Gas-SK
EnergyAIR & 75 2 EE A R#70,000,0007T (FHE R
80269,00087C) * M5 —BMRAEEREE LT
HEE c B—REMEAZEERABESERESR
MBI EIMBRARER » ZEBBETIAZ
F—IREETT - AR HEARE AN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < MizE

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

41. ACQUISITION OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Establishment of a jointly controlled entity in 2009

continued)

4. WA EEHIER
vt

REBFEAFRS

R (50

Carrying
amount of net Fair value of
assets injected net assets injected Fair value of
by other by the other net assets under
shareholder of Fairvalue  shareholderof  proportionate
SERR adjustments SEHM  consolidation
SERRE—F SETRE-F RUBIEHE
BRERFEA REFTEA TEZ
ZHREE ZREE FEEZ
ZIEEE AFERE ZAYE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT FET
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED kB REE
Property, plant and equipment W% BEREE 143382 (33) 143,349 35837
Trade and other receivables B 5 REWAR R E At e Y BR IR 68 (68) = =
Inventories "E 76 - 76 19
Bank balances and cash ROBEFERAS 100 - 100 25
Trade and other payables 2 SEMNRR R M ENEEE (27.817) - (27817) (6,954)
115,809 (101) 115,708 28927
Cash injection by China Gas - SK Energy
China Gas - SK Energy ZHEFE 80,269 20,067
Discount on acquisition Ui 2 4 = (8,860)
Total consideration BRE 195977 40,134
SATISFIED BY XMER
Cash injection to & ZEHA FEFREERRZ
by the Group Rex’ 40,134
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING EWEMEELZ
ON ACQUISITION REREFE
Cash paid BEffFHE (40,134)
Bank balances and cash acquired ~ FTUREE 2 SRITHTE RIES 20,092
(20,042)

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT
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At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=1+—HIFE

(i

)

On January 1, 2008, a jointly controlled entity, China Gas — SK Energy,
which the Group owns 50% issued share capital, established a jointly
controlled entity in the PRC, namely &M AE BRMMMARERE
BRAE (‘AN BB, which China Gas — SK Energy owns 50% issued

share capital. China Gas — SK Energy contributed the capital in cash of

RMB71,200,000 (equivalent to HK$75,820,000) and the other shareholder
contributed the capital in the form of assets and liabilities. The assets
and liabilities contributed by the other shareholder enable & M AR A
to continue the operation of the existing natural gas business which
the other shareholder previously engaged. This transaction has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Cash injection by China Gas — SK Energy
Total consideration

SATISFIED BY
Cash injection to & 1| H ¥R by the Group

NET CASH OUTFLOW
ARISING ON ACQUISITION

Cash paid

Bank balances and cash acquired

gz FEE
ERNE I G

B Z YRR E A YRR

RITREFRRE

B 5 e AR R B A AR IR

China Gas - SK Energy 2 IR &£ &

BIE
XNHER

AEEREMNPR2IRETE

HWEmELEZ
REmHFHR

ENRE

PR 2 SRTTE T RIS

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

@)

HKZZZ)\F—H—H ' China Gas-SK Energy
(R EBEHEA50%E FITRA Z L REHE
B R B AT S B A NP E B
BHMRERER AR EIMFBH])  China
Gas-SK Energyi® & A #E H50%E B ATIR K o
China Gas-SK Energy AZR & 5 N )F B AR
71,200,0007T (#8 & 775,820,000/ 7T) * 15—
RERABEERBBZHEER - Z—REM
EAZEBERBESAMNPREELCERE
RARER  ZEBBAEDHAZS —BRE#E
17 o R HEAWESHENER ©

Carrying amount

Carrying  and fair value of

amount and fair  net assets under
value of net assets proportionate
injected by the other consolidation
shareholder of & M 1 #% & tb A
AMPRE —BRR AOHEE
FrEAZ ZREE
FEEZEREE ZAREE
RAFE RAFRE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET

76,100 19,025

416 104

27,880 6,970
(28,576) (7,144)

75,820 18,955

75,820 18,955

151,640 37,910

37910
(37,910)

25,925
(11,985)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

41. ACQUISITION OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)
Establishment of jointly controlled entities in 2008 (continued)

(i)  OnAugust 18,2007, the Group established ajointly controlled entity in the
PRC, namely &1 # R, which the Group owns 49% issued share capital.
The Group contributed the capital in cash of RMB104,983,000 (equivalent
to HK$111,195,000) and the other shareholder contributed the capital
in the form of assets and liabilities. The assets and liabilities contributed
by the other shareholder enable &I A to continue the operation of
the existing natural gas business which the other shareholder previously
engaged. This transaction has been accounted for using the purchase

41.

OB 3t 2 B B )
R=BR/\ER IR RIRR ()

(i) RZZTZELFENA+N\B  AEERFBK
SFEHERAEHEREMPR  AEEES
B 4% BITRAR - REBE RS HR)E
& A R #104,983,0007T (#8 & 7111,195,00074
L) MB—REANEEREBBEZHIEE -
S—BREMFAZEERBESEMNFBRE
BRERBRAREL - ZEBBETIHZ
SREET  ZRZEARBETEA

method of accounting.

BE o

Provisional Adjusted fair
Carrying fair value as Prior year value of
amount of net previously  adjustments net assets
assets injected stated injected upon injected  49% of fair
by other byother  completion byother  value under
shareholder Fairvalue  shareholder ofinitial  shareholder proportionate
of EMHM  adjustments  of BT accounting  of EMFH  consolidation
EAIFTR i Lol
EMBR YLl Z-2RR
Z-ERR Z-2RE  mEAS FEA RILA
FEA FEA gtk ZBEE AHEHE
ZREE LFEE REF gRE  2AVE
ZRAE ATERE ZEEAVE W BB 2AYE 289%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TATL TAL Thr TAT TEL Thr
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED e s
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERLE 162,890 (8398) 154492 - 154492 75,701
Prepaid lease payments BABRENR 7447 - 7447 - 7447 3649
Intangible assets - exclusive BMAE-
rights of natural gas operations RARBRCE R - 5198 5198 57919 63117 30927
Inventories FE& 4941 - 4941 - 4941 2421
Trade and other receivables B S RIEH R A YRR 15682 (147) 15535 - 15535 7611
Bank halances and cash FIHEERRS 19,82 - 19,182 - 19,182 9399
Trade and other payables BORNRSREMENRE (36,008) - (36,008) - (36,008) (17,643)
Bank borrowings BITEE (53754) - (53754) - (53,754) (26339)
Deferred taxation EEHE = (1,300) (1,300) (14480) (15,780) (7732
120,380 (4,647) 115733 43439 159172 77994
Cash injection by the Group TEEZRETE 111,195 - 111,195 54486
226928 43439 270,367 132480
Discount on acquisition WeEzmE (21285)
Total consideration BRE 111,195
SATISFIED BY AR
Cash injection to /A &N R ST E 111,195
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING RUBMELZRERLFR
ONACQUISITION
Cash paid B¢ (111,195)
Bank balances and cash acquired Pl 2 AT RS 63885
(47310)

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZR AR AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

41. ACQUISITION OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued
Establishment of jointly controlled entities in 2008 (continued)

(i) On May 21, 2007, the Group established a jointly controlled entity in
Bermuda, namely China Oman, which the Group owns 50% issued
share capital. The Group paid in cash of US$3,500,000 (approximately
HK$27,300,000) to subscribe 3,500,000 ordinary shares of China Oman and
the other shareholder paid in form of cash of US$3,500 (approximately
HK$27,000) and agreed to contribute the technical expertise with value
of US$3,496,500 (approximately HK$27,273,000) to subscribe 3,500,000
ordinary shares of China Oman. The technical expertise with fair value
of HK$13,637,000, representing the committed contribution to China
Oman during the operation period of 20 years by the joint venturer
of China Oman without any compensation from China Oman for the
identification and development of (1) the energy projects related to
the oil and gas filed exploration and production (including coal-bed
methane fields), transportation infrastructure, such as pipelines, and gas
liquefaction and re-gasification facilities in the Middle East, PRC or other
parts of the world and (2) the importation of energy products into the
PRC including liquefied natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas, crude oil
and fuel oil from the Middle East or other parts of the world. Acquisition
of the technical expertise enhances the Group’s competitiveness in
the gas supply market in the PRC. The technical expertise contributed
by other shareholder was accounted for as an intangible asset and the
Groups shared 50% on it.

Acquisition of assets through purchase of a jointly controlled entity
in 2008

On September 20, 2007, the Group acquired a jointly controlled entity in the
PRC, namelyEBE S2HE, which the Group owns 49% registered capital with a
consideration of RMB15,680,000. E & ST has not yet commenced business
at date of acquisition.

41. BB H E s R ()
R-BENFRIHFEIEE )

(i) RZEBE+ERA-+—H AEEREE
2 pk 7 — 8 2L [ #2 Hl B B2China Oman @ AN
EEHEEEPS0NE BITRA - KEBMZ A
3 £3,500,0003 JT( #927,300,000% 7T ) R &
3,500,000/%China Omanz E AL - T3S — %
R Z B 3,5003 Tt (£927,0007 7T ) Iz [A &=
E A & {83,496,500% JT( %927,273,0009 TC )
Z B PIHEAMT + LARR BE3,500,0008%China Oman
2 ERAR - BFIET 2 A 18 A13,637,000
B IT » K EKChina OmanZ & & T 205F & 18
88 8 ¥ China OmanZ it & # & i & ZAChina
Oman#s T8 - Y@ RFEEO) Bk R HE
HHERAEE(REEERRE)EEZRE
B RAAR FESMRSIE 2 EHEE
(MHRE - [RIERBREERE) RQKEH
Rttt RE b T ARRE®D - 2ERE
KRR RILBHRR - BARBEEREZ
X755 o WEBEFIRMAIRE AR EES ER
REEMBZHFE N - Z3—REEAZER
BIEEREFEESR - MASEEGH
50% ©

3

R-ZBZLEAA-+AH  AEEURBARE
15,680,0007C 74 H B 5 S L [RI4E f|  BB 55 S A -
RNEB A H M AR49% - EE ST N KRIEE
A ARRAZER o

R-ZZN\FEBRELAREFERKEZE
—=

Net assets 49% of net assets
of the jointly under proportionate
controlled entity consolidation
HEZEHERE  REASHHETHE
ZBEE ZREEA%
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHATT FAIT
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED kg REE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MR 44,862 21,982
Trade and other receivables E SRR K E b FE U BRIE 3,170 1,553
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIES 45 22
Trade and other payables B 5 FE ST BRI EL A FE ST R TE (1,682) (824)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (13,742) (6,733)
32,653 16,000
SATISFIED BY XAHAFERX
Cash consideration L RE 16,000
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING ON HEmEE 2
ACQUISITION bR o p=2s
Cash paid BEfRe (16,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired FiE 2 RiTEF RIS 22
(15,978)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR Z= i 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES 42. WIB R
Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009 REZBZNFEBWEHE A RUEER
(i) On September 30, 2008, the Group acquired 83% equity interests () RZZBENFAA=TH  AEENUREA
in Zhongyou Hua Dian for cash of RMB501,780,000 (equivalent to IR %501,780,0007T(#8 & $2557,533,0007% JT) 4L
HK$557,533,000). BB I B3R AR -

Acquiree’s carrying

amount before Fair value Provisional
combination adjustments fair values
WUEE S RS BF
A ZEREE AFERE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHIT FA7T FHIT
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED Bz FEE
Investment properties EYE 70,301 - 70,301
Property, plantand equipment  #12 ~ IS K& 1E 1,728,955 351,250 2,080,205
Prepaid lease payments TESHEEMR 143,607 290,004 433611
Interest in associates i NI 37,574 = 37,574
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 29,349 = 29,349
Inventories Ay 288326 = 288,326
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEURBR N N L Ath FE UK BR TR 548987 = 548987
Pledged bank deposits BEIARITER 716,692 = 716,692
Bank balances and cash RITEGERRS 294,874 = 294,874
Trade and other payables E S MR R H A FEBRIE (1319,157) - (1,319,157)
Bank borrowings RITEE (2422,099) - (2/422,099)
Deferred taxation RIERTR = (160,314) (160,314)
117409 480,940 598,349
Minority interests DHPE R IES (191,326)
Goodwill on acquisition Wi 2 150,510
557,533
SATISFIED BY E-2NP:E:N
Cash consideration paid AEEEMZRERE
by the Group 519,620
Deferred cash consideration FERSR(E 37,913
557,533
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING E WM E4LE 2
ON ACQUISITION RERERRE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (519,620)
Bank balances and cash acquired FTHEE 2 $R1T451F MR & 294,874
(224,746)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR Z= i 5T

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued) 42, WM (1)
Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009 REZBZNFEBREMHE QR (E)
(continued)

Note: The initial accounting for the above acquisition has been determined Mzt : bt ER 2 VIS @ RIR TR E
provisionally, awaiting the receipt of professional valuations in relation to AFEREWIERREEE THBEEER
certain underlying assets and liabilities of the acquiree. BEzEEME -

Zhongyou Hua Dian principally engages in the business of trading of HUMEE  FEXRREBEIPGER - AUHE

LPG business. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Zhongyou Hua FHEEMEEZHEBNERZEEEELPF

Dian is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the trading of LPG X5 2 TEEEFIRE ST ©

business of this group.

Zhongyou Hua Dian contributed to the Group's revenue and loss of RN FHEERAEESR 2 K= RER
HK$2,076,887,000 and of HK$ 153,342,000 for the year respectively. 2 51l £2,076,887,00078 7T }2.153,342,00078 7T °
The deferred cash consideration will be payable within one year after BER @ REERKETKE —FAZT -

completion of acquisition.

If the above acquisitions had been completed on April 1, 2008, total group i bl EERHYER ST \FEA—HFE
revenue and profit for the year would have been HK$9,171,713,000, and X RSB B A KOE R FE D BRIl A9,171,713,000
HK$30,560,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative 7 7T % 30,560,000/ 7T © #E & K THEHRS R 2
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results A BERrfEAM EMKEEEHER =TT\
of operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had FIA— B KR - ANEBREREISZ Bk
above acquisitions been completed on April 1, 2008, nor is it intended to be EEEEZIER M BHERRRESZ Z TR -

projection of future results.
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(continued)

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009

for consideration of RMB29,450,000 (equivalent to HK$33,851,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

42, W (@)
RSB E B 2 2 Y8 3 (90

(i) On August 11, 2008, the Group acquired 95% of J#FBAAE, which holds iy RZZENFENA+—H REBUAARK
57% of registered capital of E/R AT EE BIAR AR 2 & (“EARET")

29,450,0007T (FHE 7233,851,00058 7T ) Y & AR
BATRos%iE xS - Mo m BB E A EANEE
EEMIAR A A ([EARLT ) ME A57%
HERS o

Acquiree’s carrying

amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair values
BB NGB
Bl Z BRTEE AFERE A¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FA7T FAT
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED iz REE
Property, plant and equipment Y - S KR 46319 = 46319
Prepaid lease payment TENEER K 2,187 - 2,187
Intangible asset — exclusive B EE—
rights of natural gas operations ~ KARBRAC & - 3,558 3,558
Trade and other receivables & 5 EURBR TR N E Ath FE UK BR TE 46,356 = 46,356
Bank balances and cash WRITHETF RS 6,713 = 6,713
Trade and other payables B S EMNRR N E A e BRIE (99,988) = (99,988)
Deferred taxation PRIEFR IR - (889) (889)
1587 2,669 4256
Minority interests DHAR R R (24,093)
Goodwil [ES 53,688
Total consideration BRE 33851
SATISFIED BY AR
Cash consideration paid AEEBRZ
by the Group HERE 23,696
Deferred cash consideration BERSNRE 10,155
33,851
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING EHWEMELZ
ON ACQUISITION REMRHRE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (23,696)
Bank balances and cash acquired ~ FTRIBZ RITHEF AR E 6713
(16,983)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009

(continued)

(iii

SHRIAAEE is an investment holding company and fE7KHT is engaged in
the operation of gas connection and sales of piped gas businesses in the
PRC. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of J8iFIBHF2 is attributable
to the anticipated profitability of the gas connection and sales of piped

gas businesses of this group.

S5 58 BAFE contributed to the Group's revenue and profit of HK$ 78,579,000

and HK$32,076,000 respectively for the year.

On July 11, 2008, the Group entered into cooperation agreement
with independent third parties pursuant to which the Group acquired
51% equity interest in NESWMARARADAT (RNESH) for
RMB13,490,000 (equivalent to HK$15,506,000) and the other shareholder

contributed the additional capital in form of assets and liabilities.

42, W R ()

R-2s

—==

WERAESREERAR - MEARSZEZER

NEEBUUBHE L RIBUBRER (8)

RETFREEMRERREEETERRE -

WA RRmEL 2 BB ERZEERRE

RS EERREB AR

FA - OHEAR RSB R FoE A 9 5l

78,579,0007% 7T }%32,076,000/8 7T ©

(i) RZZTENFELA+—B AEBEHEBYE
=HENEERE  BUAEEUARE
13,490,0007T ( #8 & #415,506,00078 7T ) Ut B8 K 8
SHWRRER AT KESW ) 51% AR

% Ma—BRNEERBEZHEE

Acquiree’s carrying

amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair values
BT RE 6
A ZEREE AEERE AFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T T
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED FriiE FEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KRR 16,751 = 16,751
Intangible asset — exclusive rights ~ ZEFZ & = —
of natural gas operations RINRBRIC & - 3,566 3,566
Prepaid lease payment TR SRR 195 - 195
Inventories 58 458 = 458
Other receivables E b pE U BRI 1,544 = 1,544
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERES 244 = 244
Trade and other payables B 5P M BRR R H A T RRIE (6,742) - (6,742)
Deferred taxation IRIERIIE - 891) (891)
12,450 2,675 15,125
Cash injection by the Group REBZRESFE 15,506
Minority interests DERR RS (15,125)
15,506
SATISFIED BY NP
Cash injection by the Group rEBZRETE 15,506
NET CASHINFLOW ARISING  FAWEmMESZ
ON ACQUISITION RERAFHE
Bank balances and cash acquired ~ PTURHE 2 R 74517 IR & 244
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2009

(continued)

RE S is principally engaged in the installation of nature gas pipeline
network and related facilities and sale of natural gas in the PRC.

KB, contributed to the Group's revenue and loss of HK$548,000
and HK$567,000 respectively for the year.

If the above acquisitions had been completed on April 1, 2008, total group
revenue and profit for the year including Zhongyou Hua Dian stated in note
42(i) would have been HK$9,188,455,000 and HK$32,490,000 respectively. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had above acquisitions been completed on April
1,2008, nor is it intended to be projection of future results.

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008

() On December 18, 2006, the Group entered into share transfer
agreements with two independent third parties pursuant to which
the Group acquired 100% of Positive Rise, which holds 100% registered
capital of H/ &R BRHEMBEX AR AR ('_E/FHE") which in turn
holds 51% of registered capital of ZREER AR, which is considered as
a jointly controlled entity of the Group, at an aggregate consideration
of RMB255,950,000 (equivalent to HK$256,011,000). The acquisition was
completed on May 23, 2007.

42, W R ()

R=BRAEEBBIHE 2 R ()

REGHZ TBEBRETREERARE
B MR R R R RIHERRRE

FRN - RESHAAEBERZ K REE
7 Bl 548,000/ 7T % 567,0007 7T ©

MR EEESER-_ET N\ENA—Hx
B - B (B IEM 40Tl 2 FOmES )R F
A 2 48 Wz & 5 I & 9 Bl £9,188,455,0007% 7T K.
32,490,000/ 7T ° HEER HEHRTIIZA - B
AlfERMW LB ETHER TS N\FMNA —
ASERRE - ASRBEREREZ R EESE
ZIEE - INNREAARRERE ZTEA -

REZBENFEBYEHEQRWBERES

() RZZTEXE+-A+/\B KEEEBSLZ
BYE=FFIMNBROERERGZE Bt &
£ BB R E AR K25595000070(HH E R
256,011,00078 7T ) 42 & 1E 100942 2% + i 1E S
BELETERERREEFR AR LE
RE ) EMERI0% - M LEEFEIFESR
BERAR(EERAREE Z KREGEE)
AMEARS1% - WEEHEER_-_ZTZLFH

AZ+=B%K °
Acquiree’s carrying
amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair values
BB N E B
A Z BRTEE AR ERE AY¥E
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAT TAT FAT
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED FriE 2 FEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE -~ BB MRS 254,575 40436 295,011
Intangible asset — exclusive rights ~ #EFZ &2 —
of natural gas operations RATIBRAZ & HE = 93,837 03,837
Inventories 58 1,409 - 1,409
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEURBRFR N L Ath FE UK BR TR 18,140 = 18,140
Bank balances and cash RITRETF RS 30,937 = 30937
Trade and other payables B S ENBRF N L Ab FESBRIE (111,933) = (111,933)
Bank borrowings RITEE (137,908) - (137,908)
Deferred taxation RERTR - (33,568) (33,568)
55,220 100,705 155,925
Goodwill 5k 100,086
Total consideration BRE 256,011
SATISFIED BY AR
Cash consideration HERE 256,011
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING EUWEMESZ
ON ACQUISITION RE i ReE
Cash consideration paid ERERE (256,011)
Bank balances and cash acquired ~ FTHEE Z SR1T4F MR © 30937
(225,074)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008

(continued)

(ii)

/8% E is an investment holding company and ZEEERIAF is
engaged in the operation of gas connection and sales of piped gas
businesses in the PRC. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Positive
Rise is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the gas connection
and sales of piped gas businesses of this group.

Positive Rise contributed to the Group's revenue and profit of
HK$213,845,000 and HK$9,523,000 respectively for the year ended March
31,2008.

On June 18, 2007, the Group acquired 80% equity interests in E3ZBRAS,
at a consideration of RMB147,040,000 (equivalent to HK$150,041,000).

a2. B ¥R (%)
KRB\ EBB 2 R RS ()

(iif)

Acquiree’s carrying

EBTERS—BREZEERAR - MIEERA
FRANHERERRER R EEEMAE
%o WIS IEBMAES BB ERZEER
REBRHEETEMAREL < TRHANRE
PEK

HE_ZZN\F=ZA=+—HBLEE"
FEAAEBESR 2 W &g A 9D B &
213,845,000/ 7T }2.9,523,000 7T ©

REZZEZTEFANATNE  AEBUREA
R #5147,040,0007T (A8'E 52150,041,000% 7T ) 42
& B AR RB0% AL A HE RS ©

amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair values
WWEEHTRE B
AIZ FREE AFERE A¥E
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAIT FA7T T
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED FruRiE 2 FEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B KR 499,139 24,513 523,652
Prepaid lease payments FEREENK 14,714 52,006 66,720
Intangible assets — exclusive rights  #EfFZ & & —
of gas operations RARBRICEE - 25,104 25104
Inventories "E 10,486 = 10,486
Trade and other receivables B 5 e R N b e UG BR TE 5,209 = 5,209
Bank balances and cash RITHEFNIRS 3,603 = 3,603
Trade and other payables B SN BRIR R EAth FE AT BRIE (19,298) = (19,298)
Bank borrowings SRITIEE (378,530) = (378,530)
Deferred taxation FIEF IR - (25,406) (25,406)
135,323 76,217 211,540
Minority interests DERRR (42,308)
Discount on acquisition Ui 2 Hrak (19191)
150,041
SATISFIED BY AR
Cash consideration ReRE 150,041
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING EUWEMELZ
ON ACQUISITION REmEeE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (150,041)
Bank balances and cash acquired  FTURRE 2 $R1T4517 MR & 3,603
(146,438)
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42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008

(continued)

(iii

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZR AR AT

BSEMAR, principally engages in the production and sale of liquefied
natural gas, coal gas, natural gas and their respective side products,
design and operation of the liquefied natural gas and coal gas projects.
The discount on acquisition of EZBRAR amounted to HK$19,191,000
which was recognised in consolidated income statement during the
year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as the seller is lack of
resources to finance the development plan by the local government in
certain large-scale gas connection contracts in the foreseeable future,
the introduction of the Group to B.EBAS, of financial position of F58
#ASRand the continuance of the development plan, therefore, a discount
is resulted on this acquisition.

BBEMR contibuted to the Groups revenue and profit of
HK$267,746,000 and HK$59,102,000 respectively for the year ended
March 31, 2008.

On June 18, 2007, the Group acquired 80% equity interests in £ SEER
IREBTIEAMR AR (“BIEHIR") at a consideration of RMB8,000,000
(equivalent to HKS$8,163,000).

42, |
P

(iif)

—EERN\FEBWEHE A RWBRER ()

BERRZETEXKREERBERERA
R BR AAIRESEZAELER MU
RBAERAREEREE 2R REE - I
BB SRR HT:81E19,191,0008 7T S
HORNFRNELS SR ARER ©

AATRERS HRESRS ERAER
07 B R 72 42 T B SR B AT T AR
BERARZMEHEREES  3RAZE
188 B T T 2 B RS AS IA 2R
= RE T BT - RRBREE A
o -

HE_ZZN\F=ZA=+—HItFE &
SERRAAEEE R 2 W Rafo Rl A
267,746,000785 7T 5 59,102,000/ 7T °

R-TFZTLFEXNATNE  REBUREA
R #58,000,0007T (18 & 728,163,000 7T ) Ut i
BEREEEIRARAR(BERRNZ
80%RX AN A2 ©

Acquirees’ carrying
amounts before

combination
and fair values
KB FRE G
A2 BREE
HK$'000
T
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED B 2 FEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R 3,125
Inventories FE 3,731
Trade and other receivables B 5 e W AR R N Ho At L BR 1E 498
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRIRE 4303
Trade and other payables B 5 FE IS BRI EL A FE ST RRTE (9,258)
2,399
Minority interests DERR R (480)
Goodwill mE 6,244
8,163
SATISFIED BY AR
Cash consideration RERE 8,163
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING HEmEE 2
ON ACQUISITION bR o o pe28 -
Cash consideration paid BfNRERE (8,163)
Bank balances and cash acquired FrusiE 2 SR1THEETF MR E 4303
(3,860)
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At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008

(continued)

(iv

BIZEERER principally engages in the design, construction and
maintenance of city pipeline projects in the PRC. Goodwill on acquisition
of BEEAEE amounted to HK$6,244,000 which is attributable to the
anticipated synergy effect of businesses with another newly acquired
subsidiary, B EEMAR.

BEARER contributed to the Group's revenue and profit HK$6,784,000
and HK$628,000 respectively for the year ended March 31, 2008.

On June 18,2007, the Group acquired 80% equity interests in £ 38 EA ER
KARIRBAR A A (“E2ZENR") at a consideration of RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to HK$24,490,000).

a2. B ¥R (%)
KRB\ EBB 2 R RS ()

BEBHEZFEEKARPEESHMER
BB ZET  BERRE REBSEREY
P 1E6,244,0008 7T+ TN ETEES —
MEFE B AR BERAE s £E 2 HR
RS FTE °

BE_ZZN\F=A=+—HILFE &
SHERSRAAREE R 2 W Rs 5 5l A
6,784,000/ 70628,00078 7T ©

vy RZZEZTEFAATNE  "EBUREA
R #524,000,0007T ( 48 & 724,490,000/ 7T ) U&
BREmRRRARMRER AR 2EM
K1) 2 80%AR A HE R ©
Acquirees’ carrying
amounts before

combination
and fair values
W T RE B
Bl 2 BRE B
HK$'000
T
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED e 2 FEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R 24,517
Inventories FE 140
Trade and other receivables E F MR E A FEURBR TR 2,693
Bank balances and cash RITEF RIS 4,886
Trade and other payables B 5 e BR AR LM FE < BR IR (7,713)
24,523
Minority interests DHRR R (4,905)
Goodwill [GES 4,872
24,490
SATISFIED BY XEHER
Cash consideration HE&RE 24,490
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING B mEE 2
ON ACQUISITION REREFE
Cash consideration paid BERBEESKE (24,490)
Bank balances and cash acquired FTURBE 2 SRITHEFRIRE 4,886
(19,604)

BEENNSR principally engages in the natural gas refill services and gas
station administration in the PRC. The goodwill on acquisition of B 58
J0S amounted to HK$4,872,000 which is attributable to the anticipated
synergy effect of businesses the another newly acquired subsidiary, £
SRR

BEB NS contributed to the Group's revenue and loss of HK$30,124,000
and HK$2,139,000 respectively for the year ended March 31, 2008.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

BENRZIBEZBARNPELERARME
RELEEMRSE - KBEBENRZEER
4,872,000/ 7T * T E TEFTER 55 — T U B Y
BARBERRZ T2 BRI

HE_ZTTN\E=-A=1+—HLFE  8FEIK
RANE B TR 2 W R BB 5 Bl £30,124,0007 7T
12,139,000/ 7T ©
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(continued)

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008

RMB121,860,000 (equivalent to HK$124,347,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

a2. B ¥R (%)
KRB\ EBB 2 R RS ()

(v) On April 25, 2007, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in & v REZZEZELFWNA=1+HA  AEBURE
Bt RAARBBREFAR (‘EEMIL) at a consideration of

AR #5121,860,0007T (F8E 73124,347,0007 7T )
WHEEEMILRAATBRETARERE
St 1) 2 1009% A ANHE RS ©

Acquiree’s carrying

amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair values
BT RE 6
Al ZEREE AFERE AFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FH7T T
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED Bz REE
Property, plant and equipment VI - WS R 103,642 = 103,642
Prepaid lease payments FANHEERK = 7,808 7,808
Interest in an associate REEE R R 2 s 1,000 = 1,000
Inventories FE 1,948 - 1,948
Trade and other receivables B SRR N H A R BR TR 13,063 = 13,063
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRS 25,857 = 25,857
Trade and other payables B S EMNRR N E A FETBRIE (34,099) = (34,099)
Deferred taxation IR IA - (1,952) (1,952)
111411 5,856 117,267
Goodwill EES 7,080
124,347
SATISFIED BY AR
Cash consideration ReRE 124,347
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING FHIWEMELZ
ON ACQUISITION bRy e
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (124,347)
Bank balances and cash acquired  FTYiE 2 $R1T4E1F RIR € 25,857
(98,490)

E AL principally engages in the installation of natural gas pipeline

network and related facilities and sale of natural gas.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of i1t is attributable on
the anticipated profitability of the gas connection and sales of piped gas

businesses of this company.

& At contributed to the Group's revenue and profit of HK$61,075,000

and HK$9,988,000 respectively for the year ended March 31, 2008.

China Gas Holdings Limited FERRIZRAER AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 &

ERALZ TEXBR/TERRARE BRI E
BRIE - ARHERAR °

WEEREILMES Z BB RNZ A BLZMR
BB MHEEBMREL 2 HRAF BN -

BE—ZT/\F=ZA=+—HLLFE EEni
AR BT 2 Wezs Ko K53 Bll61,075,0007 7T &
9,988,000/8 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r & B 1% SRR fi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

a2. B ¥R (%)
KRB\ EBB 2 R RS ()

42. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008
(continued)

V) REBE+FENAZTNE  REEUKE
A R #40,100,0007T (#8 & 740,918,000/ 7T )

(vi) On September 28, 2007, the Group acquired 51% equity interests
in FUINERAE at a consideration of RMB40,100,000 (equivalent to

HK$40,918,000). WE N R B 2 519% A AN 25 o
Prior year
adjustments
Acquirees’ Provisional upon
carrying fairvalueas completion
amounts before  Fairvalue  previously of initial Adjusted
combination adjustments stated accounting fair values
TRIL
BUER SEAl Bitk
REst iz EE BMAEF &
AZREE AFERE DVE  EHEE BARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET THET
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED g2 REE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 23,934 - 23,934 = 23,934
Intangible assets — exclusive ERAE—
rights of natural gas AARBRIE L
operations - 94,018 94,018 (29,217) 64,801
Inventories & 855 - 855 855
Trade and other receivables B o RMERR R
H it e AR IA 3720 - 3,720 - 3,720
Bank balances and cash SBITRERES 1,716 = 1,716 = 1,716
Trade and other payables B S REARERR
Hit et iRIA (15405) = (15,405) = (15,405)
Bank borrowings RITEE (5102) - (5102) - (5,102)
Deferred taxation EERIR - (23,504) (23,504) 7304 (16,200)
9,718 70,514 80,232 (21,913) 58,319
Minority interests DB s (28,576)
Goodwill B 11,175
40918
SATISFIED BY ZRHER
Cash consideration REHE 40,918
NET CASH OUTFLOW HBEBmEEZ
ARISING ON ACQUISITION RERHFE
Cash consideration paid BERNRERE (40918)
Bank balances and cash acquired P 2 RITEF RIS 1,716
(39,202)

MMREZEXB AR PERERARES - B8
BRLERER  URHERAR -

WUINERAE is engaged in trading of natural gas pipeline network
installation business and sales of natural gas in the PRC.

HE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—HILFE - MINERE
RAEBT R 2 W & E51E 5 Rl 49,927,000% 7T
21,127,000 7T °

MU ER BE contributed to the Group's revenue and loss of HK$9,927,000
and HKS$1,127,000 respectively for the year ended March 31, 2008.
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42.

43.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of businesses through purchase of subsidiaries in 2008

(continued)

If the above acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2008 had been
completed on April 1,2007, total group revenue for the year would have been
HK$2,523,791,000, and profit for the year ended March 31, 2008 would have
been HK$411,934,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had above acquisitions
been completed on April 1, 2007, nor is it intended to be projection of future
results.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises and equipment which fall due as follows:

42.

43.

W B 2T ()
REZZN\FEBYEHEQRWBER ()

WERARBEE—_TTNEFE=A=1+—RHILFEZ
WIEEBHER ST LFWNA—HEK " &
BN F Rz U 52,523,791,000/8 T + &L
E-TTN\F=ZA=+—RHLEEEEFNEE
411,934,000 7T - BE BRI HEHRSIRZA - B
A tE AN Bk RIENER ST +F M A
—HERE  AREERERSZREREEE
BZIER - MTEHERARRERE ZTEA -

REBENRH
REBEEREEA

REER - AEEREBE N SEERZEEY
F 2 PRI R A M AREAS AR R 2 &
ERESMT

2009 2008

—EEAE —TT)\F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FHIT

Within one year —FRA 12,237 10,441
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF (BREEEMSE) 10,884 7318
After five years AFEE 1,498 186
24,619 17,945

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group in respect
of leasehold land and buildings and equipments. Leases for rented premises
and equipment are negotiated for an average term of two to six years with
fixed rental.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

RERHZ NFIEAREB AR 2 L3t RET
KEREBERNZES - HEWEBROEREFER
HMz=AFE - HEEE -

REBEERHBEA

REER - REETIISEERZ NI EEEE
MELERLD  AEEERZBFPRIA T RRRE
HERTAH :

2009 2008

—EEhEF —TT)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —FR 8,154 7,898
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEFERF (BEEEMSE) 7,735 10,278
After five years AFE - 2181
15,889 20,357

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two to ten years.
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At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

44,

45.

46.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(i)  On April 29, 2006, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with EfE A RBEERNBRAR (FEH
B (formerly known as EEFERTIERRARAD AR AR]) pursuant
to which the subsidiary will acquire 60% equity interest in FZ2EE& 8
MREMREEART (FAEEE") at an aggregate consideration of
RMB110,000,000 (approximate by HK$126,436,000) and have paid a
deposit of RMB55,000,000 (approximate by HK$63,218,000) as at the
balance sheet date. The completion of the acquisition is pending for the
completion of change in the shareholders of FIZE& #& for B 5 B to
get the control of FIZEE 8 pursuant to the share transfer agreement.
The transaction has not yet been completed at the date of this report.

(i) On June 6, 2006, the Group entered into an investment agreement
(“Investment Agreement”) with Dalian SOA Administration Bureau to
establish a subsidiary namely A& F A3 T #A SR 3 R B BR A A (‘Dalian
JV"). Dalian JV will engage principally in the natural gas business. The
Group will hold 75% equity interest of Dalian JV after its establishment.
Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, the registered capital of the
Dalian JV will be RMB1,000,000,000 (approximate HK$1,020,408,000).
RMB750,000,000 (approximate HK$765,306,000) will be contributed
by the Group by way of cash and the remaining RMB250,000,000
(approximate HK$255,102,000) will be contributed by Dalian SOA
Administration Bureau by way of assets injection. The transaction has not
yet been completed and there is no capital contributed by the Group up
to at the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at March 31, 2009, the Group has capital
commitments in respect of the acquisition for property, plant and equipment
and construction materials for property, plant and equipment contracted for
but not provided in the financial statements amounting to HK$208,150,000
(2008:  HK$201,256,000) and HK$93,312,000 (2008: HK$119,897,000)
respectively.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments having a net carrying value of HK$457,164,000 and HK$37,047,000
(2008: HK$6,297,000 and HK$22,181,000) respectively, investment properties
having a carrying value of HK$19,200,000 (2008: HK$20,100,000), trade
receivables having carrying amount of HK$45,878,000 (2008: HK$24,232,000),
inventories having carrying value of HK$87,651,000 (2008: nil), pledged bank
deposits of HK$847,759,000 (2008: HKS$164,597,000) and certain subsidiaries
pledged their equity investments in other subsidiaries to banks to secure loan
facilities granted to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effective from December 1, 2000, the Group has joined a MPF Scheme
for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect of the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years at March 31,
2009 and 2008.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRER AT

44,

45.

BAEE

() RZZBERENA=-+NE  ~AAFMHEER
mARMRERBROERAR(EARS] Al
TBEmME T IERRNO AR AR ]I E R
eg - Bt - ZMTBARBUARBARE
110,000,0007T ( #7126,436,000/8 7T ) NI R B &
BERRERETRAR(EEEE]) Z60%5%
- WEREHE B I ke ARS55000,000
TC(4763,218000% 7T ) - Z W FIH AT/
FRATKRIBEROE R G REEEEEE
MEMEEE 2 RFIELFESTRET ER
R e RARE BE - RBIARTEK °

(i) RZZEEXRENANA AEEBEERE
BRI RERBE(RERZE] UK
N—REBRNEFRB AR EEEBR AR
([REBEEERRDZHBEAR - REAER
AR EERERARATER - RRESERQ
RIAKAZ 18+ AR BB REA H 750 A o
BIFREH# RESGE AR ZEMER
i A A R #1,000,000,0007T( %91,020,408,000
BIL) c AEBMBUBEE TN EAARKE
750,000,0007T ( £765,306,0005 7T) * M ERFRA
R #250,000,0007T ( £255,102,0007 7T ) #% FA A
EREEZGEABERTRNHE - RARK
HRE - RHMARTHK - MAEEIREED
EEE ©

B EFMBEEIN RZTEZAF=A=1+—
A AEERKEDE BEREERDE - B
B R %A 2 M 5 BIE H A28208,150,00078 7T (=
T T NE ¢ 201,256,000/ 7T ) 593,312,000/ T0( =
T )\F 1 119,897,000 7T ) 2 B 7] 4910 M AR 7R B
TR DR B AN EE

BEEERA

N E B E K| IR @ F (H457,164,0007 T K&
37,047,000% 7o( = T T )\ F : 6,297,000/ 7T &
22,181,000/ 70) 2 & T Y% « WE R&ERIER
HEFRE - UAKRIKREEA192000008T(ZTF
JUEE 1 20,1000008 7T ) Z IR EWME - RHEER
45,878,000/ 7T 2 H M B F FEWARK (=TT )\ F -
24,232,000/ 7T ) * BREI{E 287,651,000 T2 7 &
(ZEZTNF : £) - B2847,759,000/% 7T 2 B K
HRITER(ZTZT )\ 164,597,000/ 7T ) * KA
RETH BRI E RSN H MM E AR 2R
BETFRIT  UWSAEEERESHRE -

46. RIRBERIFTE
—F

BE-ZZTF+_A—HR AEBRMEEE
BESIEFIMELTESFE - RESFH B DHRE
SBREMEATREFEIED - MRGIEARSFEE
BRI - BESHBZAERARE L EED
RRHALMBLIEATE - RIBFRBESFE 2
BRI B X KRB ERIASRRIIEE 2 Lb R M ZFT
B - AREHRBEE A B 2 M —FERIEZ
B2 ERER - REBTNFR_FTN\F=
A=+—8 » WERRERAERERRBREE
2 R o
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46.

47.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (continuec

Employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are covered by the
retirement and pension schemes defined by local practice and regulations.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement and pension schemes. The only obligation
of the Group in respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contribution.

The calculation of contributions for PRC eligible staff is based on certain
percentage of the applicable payroll costs. The contribution to the MPF
Scheme is calculated based on the rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which is
5% on the basic salary of the relevant employee subject to a specific ceiling.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed on February 6, 2003 (the “Scheme”) for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to any directors of the Company, any employees of
the Group, or any employee, partner or director of any business consultant,
joint venture partner, financial adviser or legal adviser of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of shareholders’approval of the Scheme (“Scheme Mandate
Limit") or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders'approval of
the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company then in issue. Each grant of options to any director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors. Where any grant of options to substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director or any of their respective associate
would result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in
the 12-month period up to the date of grant must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$ 10 per each grant. Options may be exercised at any time from
the date to be determined by the board of directors to the tenth anniversary
of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and
(i) the nominal value of a share.

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from the date of adoption until
February 5, 2013.
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R8I ()

AEERANBEARZES T EFIRRER
E R SRINEFT IR - B A RARENR
FMERAR SR EETERA ZHEE D LLER
HR - ARERERAKENF B2 REERIELR

FEHER

BASERE THFDRIEER TEXRARKER
DHEE - HRBSF I ZHHDRERESF
DIFFIRRRAIGTE - BB IR BIR S Z 5% N E
ERR -

BRESTEIR ARG EA TR

ARAF B BI([%a 8 ) AR A A RRE
AR TR =F_ ANRBBZRBERMRMR -
ZET B2 RE DRERAAREIFNES  A&KE
Efa{E B Sk EM SRR - AR - BRI
PERBRZEMES ARARES -

WRARZ AT 2 A 5 2 AR FT o R 2 IR D 48 8
TARBBIR R AL fEZAT EE B AR R B EHITRG
210% ([FT 8324 LBR |) sk a3 10%R 58 F LA TE
3 BIERRR B EEE T EIEE ERE B AAR
BB 2 10% - BITEREZTEIMT LA
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RZBAEE « THRBEERARREETRGD
HE1% SREBRETEMNES - THEH
NEZRRBBEE L IFATESIE o EIF
HERET T ERR I ABLIENTESHE
T BE 22 A T2 5| AT TR B 15 I B A 154
ZARREB BT RS EITROERANARE R
TRAI%MBEE#ER AL+ =@ AEEBRE
50000007 7T * 7 BRE AR RIREBLIE -

R BREANE N AR 28R NAR - &
RBRHEREZRERIGET - BRETNES
ERTE 2 BHRER Y B +iBE AT
e THEEBRAARNESEE YR AKR
UTFz&EE : (NEHBHAQRBRMKTE
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47.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 47. BBRRESHEIR R BRI @)

(continued)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options held by TRINEEE(BEES)MHAQAEREZF
employees (including directors) and movements in such holdings during the BREE—TSTNF=-A=1t—HLBEERH
two years ended March 31, 2009: R 2 EEYIER
Number Number Number
Exercise of share Granted  Exercised Lapsed of share Granted  Exercised of share
price  optionsat during during during  optionsat during during  optionsat
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 41,2007 the year the year theyear  3.31.2008 the year theyear  3.31.2009
RZERtE RZZBNE RZZBNE
mA-A ZA=t-B =R=t-H
) SE MR FA R Fm 0 BB %m §h 2B
RiAH RS TEHR TRfE EHE BRI BfTR B4% BHE BER B REA
HKS (Note 3) (Note3)
AL (Bi&E3) (k=)
Directors
192004 192004 t0 8.30.2004 91.2004t0182014 080 31240711 = = = 31,4071 = = 3140711
1920048302004 9120042182014
1062004 (Note 1) (Note 1) 071 220,000,000 = = - 220000000 = - 220,000,000
(Rittr) (Bizt1)
1062004 1062004 0 3.19.2005 320200510 1052014 071 7,400,000 = = = 7,400,000 = = 7,400,000
(Note 2)
106.2004%319.2005 3202005%105.2014
(Hf3k2)
10202005 10202005 to 10.192010 1020201010 10.19.2015 150 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000 = = 5,000,000
10202005%10.19.2010 10202010%10.19.015
263640711 = = - 263640711 = - 263640711
Other employees
LR
19.2004 192004 t0 8.30.2004 9120040 182014 080 63210000 - (13,700,000) (400,000) 49,110,000 = (1980000) 47,130,000
19.20042830.2004 9.1.2004%1.8.2014
106.2004 1062004 0 3.19.2005 320200510 1052014 071 131,660,000 - (43310,000) - 88350000 = (190,000) 83,160,000
(Note 2)
106.2004%319.2005 320.2\005@0.52014
GiE2)
10202005 10202005 t0 10.192010 1020201010 10.19.2015 150 151,800,000 = = - 151,800,000 = - 151,800,000
10202005%10.19.2010 10202010%10.19.015
1.27.2006 127200610 1262011 127201110 1.26.2016 152 6,500,000 = = = 6,500,000 = = 6,500,000
1272006812601 127.201121262016
8.23.2007 8.23.2007 t0 9.18.2008 91920080 9.18.2017 232 = 3,000,000 = = 3,000,000 = = 3,000,000
8232007918208 919.2008%9.18.2017
8.7.2008 8.7.2008t0 9.2.2009 93200910 9.2.2018 177 = = = = = 1,500,000 = 1,500,000
9320082922009 9320092922018
8.7.2008 8720080922010 9320100922018 177 = = = = = 1,500,000 = 1,500,000
932008922010 9320102922018
353,170,000 3000000 (57,010,000) (400,000) 298,760,000 3,000,000 (2170000) 299,590,000
616810711 3000000 (57,010,000) (400,000) 562400711 3,000,000 (2170000) 563230711
Weighted average exercise price HKS093 HKS232 HKS074 HKS0.78 HKS0.93 HKS1.77 HKS0.79 HKS097
IEFHEE 0BEL 2L oML kT 0BT 17Bn 98T 09ER

Exercisable at the end of the year
ARERTHE 453510711 396100711 396930711
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At 31 March 2009 #Z =T TNF=A=+—HILFE

47.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 47. FBRRAEST IR LU X AT RR (@)

continued)

Notes:

(1) The exercise of the options will be subject to the condition that the consolidated
net asset value of the Company and its subsidiaries which shall be certified by the
auditors appointed by the Company as at the date of the exercise of the options
being not less than HK$ 1 billion. Exercisable period is between November 22, 2004
to October 5, 2014.

(2)  The original exercisable period was July 1, 2005 to October 5, 2014. Pursuant to a
resolution passed in the board of directors meeting held on March 20, 2005, the
exercisable period is changed to the period from March 20, 2005 to October 5,
2014.

(3) The weighted average share price on exercise dates and the weighted average
price immediately before exercise dates are HK$2.20 (2008: HK$2.52) per share.

The consideration received during the year from the directors and employees
for taking up the options granted amounted to HK$20 (2008: HK$10).

In accordance with HKFRS 2“Share-based payment”, fair value of share options
granted to employees determined at the date of grant is expensed over the
vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s employee
share-based compensation reserve. In the current year, an amount of share-
based payment expenses in respect of its share options of approximately
HK$6,981,000 (2008: HK$6,458,000) has been recognised with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the Group's employee share-based compensation
reserve.

The options outstanding as at March 31, 2009 have a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 6 years (2008: 7 years). During the year ended
March 31, 2009, options were granted on August 7, 2008. The estimated fair
values of the options granted are HK$2,333,000. During the year ended March
31, 2008, options were granted on August 23, 2007. The estimated fair values
of the options granted are HK$2,579,000.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

s -

(1) FTEERBEREAR T AR RIS EZ X EEN N TR
BAERHER - AARRENMBARZASEERE
AORIOEEL - ITEHR—FTENF+—A=
ToREF-mF+ARAL-

@ TEHRAR_ZFEAFLA-RE_FTNF+
AREH - BER-_TTAF=A_+HEREFS
ERMBBZRAR  TEHERR-_TTRF=
A-+HBZEZ=-Z—MF+AAA -

() RITHE B EZ iEFI9RRE & B TH6E B BART .2 N
HFHRERETR220EIT(ZTT/\FE | 2528

JT) °

MEENEEEMCERBEREMRFEAE KR
REB0BT(ZZZENE  1087T) ©

BB B ISR S YR 28R AP A 7K
RELAHEER TEECEREAFTENIRSG
B - EREAEE BB RGO RN EIE
HAREFAE - RAFE - EREZURGER
1 30 B 32 496,981,000/ 7L ( ZZE T N\ F : 6,458,000
BIT)E TR - MEFARERAEEEBRD®
M%ﬁﬁw°

RIZTAE=ZA=1+—8 " HRTEBEREZ
IEFRISBENFRRE(ZTETN\FE 7HF) ©
REE-_ZTAF=A=1+—HILFE  BRE
TRZZEZNFENALBEH - 2 BRE
2T AFEH23330008 T c REE=ZTZT/\
FZA=1+—HIEFE BREDITN=-ZTTtF
NAZ+=B#EH - FiEH 2 BREZ A
1B752,579,000/6 7T °

ZENTETERA N — R — R
EEAFE - TAZEAZEZOT

Share option grant date
B ARRES B R

August 7, 2008 August 23, 2007
—TTN\F ZTTLF
AV Rtz NAZ+=H
Weighted average share price AR E HK$1.780 HK$2.330
1.780/87C 23307
Exercise price e HK$1.770 HK$2.320
1.770% 7T 2320/87T
Expected volatility (note a) TaER KR (Pffrta) 52.55% to 53.23% 50.89%
52.55%%53.23% 50.89%
Expected life (note b) TEEHEE (Fdskb) 5.5 years to 6 years 3 years
55F 265 3F
Risk free rate (note ) EREEAE (M) 3.221%t0 3.278% 4103%
3.221%%3.278% 4.103%
Expected dividend yield (note d) TEEIRE R (KizEd) 1.90% 0.53%
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At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

47.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)

Notes:

(@) The expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over 260 trade days (2008: 260 trade days) immediately
before share option grant date.

(b) Expected life used has been adjusted, based on the management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

() The risk free rate is determined by the reference to the Exchange Fund Notes
issued by Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

(d) The expected dividend yield was based on historical dividend payment record of
the Group and consensus from analyst forecast.

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the amounts due from/to related parties as disclosed in notes 29,
31,34 and 37, the Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties that are not members of the Group:

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Group purchased gas for
total amount of HK$113,746,000 (2008: HK$105,300,000) from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries.

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Group received interest
income for total amount of HK$7,299,000 (2008: nil) from an associate.

(iii) During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Group paid construction
fee for total amount of HK$181,206,000 (2008: HK$61,655,000) to an
associate.

The remuneration of key management of the Group was as follows:

47. BRESHE R UR AR @)

(@ TEHREDEAEARRRMONEEBEAER LA
HE1260fHR 5 B (=2 N\F : 260X 5 H) ZE
SIRVEHEGE ©

b FRERZRRFRERBEEERE 2 SEM - T
HRIEC R  TERNRITAZEELRE -

© FEBRIEDNZ2EFESHMEERBTIINERS
RIRETE

(d TREREXRDREASEESREIKNLERS
TRBEANZ —HERFE -

48.BFAEALTRE

KRB 5E29 ~ 31 ~ 34 37FT 3 BB 2 FE Wt B <1 R 2
AL ZFBIHN AEERYIEAEEKE AT Z
BEALEI NI S ¢

() BEZZZAE=A=+—RHBUIEE  ~&
B A48 & 55 5113,746, 0008 T ( Z T F )\ F ¢
105,300,000/ 7T) MK B A & L SRR EE R
gg °

(il HE-_ZTNAF=ZA=+—HBLEFE K
SERHE DRI ERABE A
7,299000/87C( — BT\ : &) o

(i) BEZTEZENF=A=+—HILFE £~&
B B A& AR X T2 &4 51181,206,000
BIL(ZFZ/)\F : 61,655000787T) °

FEBEZEEE2HMEMT :

2009 2008

—EZAE —ZEENEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Short-term benefits SHIER 37,429 43,022
Post employment benefits EER R 60 63
37,489 43,085

The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

TEEEEMERFTHERSKERAARRR
MHBERETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r = B 7R &R I 5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

49. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(0]

(i)

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

On April 26, 2009, the Company entered into the a conditional agreement
with Chinese People Holdings Company Limited for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest on Brilliant China Investments Limited and its
subsidiary, Beijing Zhongmin Zhongran Trading Company Limited which,
in turn, beneficially owned 45.45% of the equity interests in Fujian Anran
Gas Investment Company Limited. The consideration of HK$323,664,000
will be satisfied in cash.

At the same date, a subsidiary of the Company also entered into a
conditional agreement with Beijing Zhongmin Company Limited for the
acquisition of 3.55% of Fujian Anran Gas Investment Company Limited.
The consideration of RMB40,000,000 will be satisfied in cash.

Details of the acquisitions are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated April 27, 2009. The transactions have not been completed at the
date of this report.

On May 31, 2009, a subsidiary of the Group entered into cooperation
agreements with H/8ZERBERA R A A and ERE E TEE MR
#HE# AR A ] pursuant to which the Group will acquire 80% equity
interest in /8 RMET5H PR 7] at a consideration of RMB74,500,000
(approximate HK$85,632,000). As at March 31, 2009, /8% RS
BMRAA] is an associate of the Group with effective shareholding of
16.6% and is principally engaged in shipping delivery services, technical
development, providing consultancy services and agent of delivery. The
transaction has not been completed at the date of this report.

Financial Report 2009 #1765 ¥ &

0]

(i)

49. FEHREI

R-ZZETHAFEMA=—+/"8 KQFEF
RIEREBR ARG B G H#E - AE
Brilliant China Investments Limited & H Fff B 2
Al R RAE A BR 2 711000 28 # &5 -
EMBE=EARELAMRIIKRERR QA
4545% X A2 o X{B323,644,0007 7T ATR
X o

REA @ AR RHER R IR RPRBR
BRABIEI B GHHE - KERELA
MRILEBR A EI355%Es - REBEARK
40,000,000TC A AIR & S A5 ©

FRARBERZFBRANARTNBHA-F
ZNFOR -+ ERZRMBA - RARER

R-ZEZNFRA=1+—8 ~EEHEL
A FEERERERARKEREHLE
EMmmRrhES AR ARG A ERRE - &
1 2 55 [ 8 U g 0 2 R M 75 A PR /A B180%
BRAEZ  KE R AR 745000005 4
85632000/ 7T) c RZEZBHE=A=+—
B EBERMBERARAAEEZHE
AT BH166% 2 BRRE  EXBEKA
MERS - BT - RHERRSE KER
RIB - RARERHE - XBHAKRTTH °



At 31 March 2009 &=
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NEZA=+—HIEFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Hai Xia Finance Limited

BRETBER AR

Iwai's Holdings (Hong Kong)

Limited

Wellgem Asia Limited
BEEDMNERAT

Zhongran Gas (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*

IR REE ORI
BRAF

PR E AR AR

Beijing Zhongran Xiangke
Qil Gas Technology
Company Limited*

IR R R
ARRF

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

ML
Hith,/
RS

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong
B

PRC

PRC

i

Form of
business
structure

EHR
B

Incorporated
AR L

Incorporated

FERY AL

Incorporated
1AV

Wholly-foreign
owned
enterprises
("WFOE")

NEBELE

WFOE

NEEELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint

venture

PhaERRE

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
BA/EfER

Ordinary
HKS2
Tdkotn

Ordinary

HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred shares
HK$1,000,000

(Note 1)
EIRAR1,000787T
ERZERT
R&171,000,000/ 7T
(FtzE)

Ordinary
HK$10,000
EiBiR1000078 7T

Registered
1S$29,800,000

AR
29,800,000 7T

Registered
RMB898,637,000
AMEAARE
898,637,0007C

Registered
RMB20,000,000

AMEAARE
20,000,0007C

TEMBRARFE

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LN
e BT
R/
BAEELA
2009 2008
“RRAE “TTNE
% %
100## 100##
100## 10044
100# 100#
100# 1004
1004# 100#
60## 60##

T

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRGR AT

Principal activities

FTREHR

Securities investment
FHERE

Investment holding,
property investment
and provision of
management services
to group companies

REER  MERE
REHERRSET
LN

Property development
MEER

Investment holding
and treasury

REERRIE

Investment holding
and treasury

REERRTE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEERARIMR
EERE

Financial Report 2009 8175k &
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—ETAF=RA=1+—HILFE

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
Name of subsidiary operations
AL
g,
WEARER EEH
Elegant Cheer Limited Hong Kong
HEHBER LA BE
Wuhan China Natural Gas PRC
Investment Company Limited*
BREPREEBRAA e
Yiyang Central Gas & City Gas PRC
Development Co, Ltd*
HETRR TR R HE
ARRF
Wuhu City Natural Gas PRC
Development Company
Limited*
EORE R HE
BEREB A
ERFHAREEER AR PRC
H
BEUARMRERAR PRC
H
BymAREREmES PRC
AR
H

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

Form of
business
structure

FHR
B

Incorporated
Balifzav
WFOE

SEBELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PhaERRE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PhaERRE

Limited
liability
company

BREERF

Limited
liability
company

BREERF

Limited
liability
company

BREERF

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Ordinary
HK$10,000
LRAR 1000078 T

Registered
RMB69,980,000
AMEAARE
69,980,0007C

Registered
RMB44,000,000

AMEAARE
44,000,0007C

Registered
RMB100,000,000

AMEAARE
100,000,0007C

Registered
RMB2,000,000

AMEAARE
2,000,0007C

Registered
RMB1,000,000

AMEAARE
1,000,0007C

Registered
RMB500,000

AMEAARE
500,0007C

Financial Report 2009 #1765 ¥ &

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LA
BRI
BA&,
EAEELS
2009 2008
ZERRE CTTN\F
% %
100## 100##
100## 10044
804 80##
90## 90##
804 80##
704## 70##
804 80##

Principal activities

EEE

Property holding
REME
Investment holding

RERR

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEERARIMR
EERE

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
BERARKIRR
EERE

o
B

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEERARIMR
EERE

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEERARIMR
EERE

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEERARIMR
EERE



At 31 March 2009 BE=_TZThNF=A=+—HILFE

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

E AR AR R TR AR

Yichang Zhongran City Gas
Development Limited*

EEF‘?’)SWH?, =)
ERERLD

RN ERAR

Clever Decision Enterprises
Limited

ERBEEHRRBIMER
BRAR

Huainan China Gas City Gas
Development Co, Ltd*

VR

SHEAM

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AL
Rzt
B3

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

BVI

RERX
BE

PRC

i

PRC

Form of
business
structure

FHR
B

Limited
liability
company

BREFAR

Limited
liability
company

BREFAR

Limited
liability
company

BREFAR

Incorporated
Limited

AL

WFOE

SEBELR

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PIHRELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PIHRELE

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Registered
RMB2,680,000

EERARE
2,680,00070

Registered
RMB70,000,000

EfERARE
70,000,0007C

Registered
RMB2,000,000

EERARE
2,000,0007C

Ordinary
US$100
EiBR100%ET

Registered
RMB20,000,000
EMERARE
20,000,0007C

Registered
RMB72,000,000

EMERARE
72,000,0007C

Registered
RMB3,000,000

EMERARE
3,000,0007C

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRGR AT

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LA
BRI
&/
EAEELS
2009 2008
ZERRE CTTN\F
% %
ST## ST##
70## 70##
95## 95##
100## 100##
10044 100##
100## 10044
100## 10044

Principal activities

EEE

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

BEAARKIAR
EERE

Investment
holding
REER

Investment holding

RARR

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BERARLMR
BERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
KRR
ﬁ%a

e
HE

Un}} m]ﬁ
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Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

Suizhou Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

REM PRI AR
HRERAT

Xiaogan China Gas Co, Ltd*

Xiaogan China Gas Co, Ltd*

ZRPTHMRRERE
BARAA]

Hanchuan Jchina Gas Co, Ltd.*

BT R R
BARAA]

Yunmeng China Gas Co, Ltd*

EERIETIRRER
BARAA]

Yingcheng Jiaxu China Gas
Co, Ltd*

o R mIRRE R
BRAR

Dangyang Zhongran Gas
Co, Ltd*

EBRRARREBR AR

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

—==

NEZA=+—HIEFE

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AL
Rzt
B3

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

Form of
business
structure

FHR
B

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

WFOE

NEBELR

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Registered
RMB35,000,000

EERARE
35,000,0007C

Registered
RMB48,950,000

EfERARE
489500007

Registered
RMB16,002,000

EERARE
1600200070

Registered
RMB11,274,000

EMERARE
11,274,0007C

Registered
RMB9,708,000

EERARE
9,708,007

Registered
RMB10,074,000

EERARE
1007400070

Registered
HK$20,000,000

AR
20,000,005
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Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LA
BRI
&/
EAEELS
2009 2008
ZERRE CTTN\F
% %
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##

Principal activities

EEE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BERMRARIRR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
EEXAR
R EBRE



Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

Pizhou Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

AT R R
BRAR

Suzhou Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

TR RE R
BRAR

Cangzhou Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

BRI TR RE R
BRAR

Nanpixian Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

BRETRRTIRE
ERERAF

Wuhusxian Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd *

EH SIS
MRERER AR

Qinzhou Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd *

PRI TR
BRARAT

Yangzhong Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd *

BRI HIRE
ERARRA

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AL
Rzt
B3

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

At 31 March 2009 BE=_TZThNF=A=+—HILFE

Form of
business
structure

EHR

B

WFOE

MEBELR

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

WFOE

NEBELR

WFOE

HEBELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PR ERE

WFOE

HEBELE

WFOE

HEBELE

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Registered
US$3,060,000

AR
3,060,000 7T

Registered
US$3,625,000

AR
3625000 7T

Registered
HK$2,000,000

AR
2,000,000/ 7T

Registered
HK$2,000,000
AfEAR
2,000,000/ 7T

Registered
RMB10,000,000

EMERARE
10,000,0007C

Registered
RMB20,000,000

EMERARE
20,000,007

Registered
US$51,000,000

AR
1,000,000 7T

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRGR AT

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LA
BRI
&/
EAEELS
2009 2008
ZERRE CTTN\F
% %
100## 100##
75## 754#
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##
100## 100##

Principal activities

EEE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline

BEERRRRMR
i

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline

N

mf mﬁ
Fl'ﬁk

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BERARRIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BERARRIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BERARRIAR
EERE
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At 31 March 2009 BE=_TZThNF=A=+—HILFE

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

Tianmen Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

KPR R R
BRAR

Baoji Zhongran City Gas
Development Co,, Ltd.

XBTRAERER
BRAT

Nanjing Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

AR TIR
FRERAT

Yulin Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

FHF RIS
FRERAT

SEEPRETRR
ERARAT

Fushun Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

BB
BRERAH

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AL
Rzt
B3

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

Form of
business
structure

FHR
B

WFOE

MEBELR

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

WFOE

MEBELR

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Registered
RMB10,000,000

EERARE
10,000,0007C

Registered
RMB265,725,000

EfERARE
2657250007

Registered
RMB200,000,000

EERARE
200,000,00070

Registered
RMB20,000,000

EERARE
20,000,0007C

Registered
RMB50,000,000

EERARE
50,000,0007C

Registered
RMB133,330,000

EERARE
133,330,0007

Financial Report 2009 #1765 ¥ &

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
LA
BRI
&/
EAEELS
2009 2008

“ERAF —TT)NF

% %

100## 100##

64 o4t

100## 10044

100## 10044

100## 100##

100## 100##

Principal activities

EEE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEAARKIAR
EERE



At 31 March 2009 BEZ—ZFZ

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

Wuwei Zhongran City Gas
Development Co, Ltd.*

EABITHIE
HFRERAT

BERL

BEMRR

BEMR

BBRER

Zhongyou Hua Dian

FHEE

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AL
Rzt
B3

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC

e

NEZA=+—HIEFE

Form of
business
structure

FHR
B

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

PORELE

Limited
liability
company

BREFAR

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Registered
RMB18,000,000

EERARE
18,000,0007C

Registered
RMB5,060,000

EfERARE
5,060,0007C

Registered
RMB183,800,000

EERARE
183,800,007

Registered
RMB30,000,000

EERARE
30000,0007C

Registered
RMB10,000,000

EERARE
10,000,0007C

Registered
RMB220,000,000

M ARE
220,000,00070

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIA RIZRGR AT

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LA
BRI
BA&,
EAEELS
2009 2008
ZERRE CTTN\F
% %
100## 100##
100## 100##
80## 80##
80## 80##
80## 80##
83## =

Principal activities

EEE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARKIAR
EERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARAR
mREERE

Trading of natural
gas and gas pipeline
construction
BEXRARAR
mREERE

Natural gas refill
services and gas
station administration

RATINBRRE R
ERMNEH

Design, construction
and maintenance of
city pipeline projects

HMEBEEZ
R BERRE

Trading of LPG

il
pu}
S
@
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At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=+—HIFE

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHE

LB HRERERER AR

R ERRER AR

M TERRRARA

EMRRERER AR

19

EMENDBRRERAR

1

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIR RIZRER AT

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AL
Rzt
B3

PRC

e

PRC

i

PRC

i

PRC

i

PRC

e

Form of
business
structure

FHR
B

Limited
liability
company

BREFAR

Limited
liability
company

Limited
liability
company

BREERF

Limited
liability
company

BREERF

Limited
liability
company

BREFAR

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital

BRERT
A/ EfER

Registered
RMB100,000,000

i
AE#100000,0007T

Registered
RMB20,000,000

i
AE#20,000,0007T

Registered
RMB20,000,000

i
AE#20,000,0007T

Registered
RMB3,000,000

i
AR#3,0000007C

Registered
USD8,000,000

A
8,000,000 7T

Financial Report 2009 #1765 ¥ &

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
LA
BRI
BA&,
EAEELS
2009 2008
“BEThFE —TT)N\F
% %
83## =
83## =
834 -
83## =
834 -
S4## -

Principal activities

EEE

Investment in
petrochemical facilities
of storage and
transportation,
fundamental facilities
of pier, sales of raw
chemical materials and
construction materials

BERIEFR
B -
TESRER R -
HEENHR
BEMB

Sale of inflammable
gas, LPG, inflammable
liquid and inflammable
solid

HESMAE
LPG « BHRREER
SINER

Goods delivery and as
agent of steel cylinder
testing

EMESLERRE
ARz

Retailing and wholesaling
of LPG and accessories

(PCREHTE RiLE

Manufacturing of highly
purified LPG, highly
purified propane and
butane

AERFLLPG
BHERRERT I



At 31 March 2000 H#E=ZFZThF=A=+—HIFE

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
orregistration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital  held by the Company Principal activities
LA
AL BRI
aEft, EBR BRERT BA&,
WEARER EEH BRA BA/ERER EXmEELH TEEH
2009 2008
“BEThFE —TT)N\F
% %
B ARARAR PRC Limited Registered 5044 = Storing and trading of
(note 2) (BH#E2) liability USD7,000,000 LPG. Sales of chemical
company products, filling of
LPG and delivery of
hazardous products
w BREEAR i LPCHFFREE -
7,000,000 7T HELBER
LPGINSE.
RERRES
IHEPARIACERAR PRC Limited Registered capital R = Producing and storing
(note 3) (Pi7E3) liability US$10,000,000 LPG and chemical product
company
w BREEAH FEME AR LPGRILEER
100000007 HERET
EFPAEMARAERAR PRC Limited Registered capital 584 - Operation of gas in cities,
liability RMB21,250,000 filling of LPG, delivery
company of hazardous products
and wholesaling and
retailing of chemical
products
i BREFERR AR BEWHIR -
ARH21,250,0007 LPGINE. *
ehmEs
EHERTE
t2ER
China Gas Corporate Services Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100#4# 100## Nominee and secretarial
Limited HKS2 services
REMRREEREERAR BA AR ER RIBARME R
2T
Iwai Style Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100#4# 100## Provision of management
Limited HK$2 services to the Group
BA AR L i MASERHERRS
2ETL

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRIZERER AT Financial Report 2009 B 153k &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B 1% SR < Mi5E

At 31 March 2009 #E—TZNF=A=+—HILFE

50. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

*

i

English name is for identification purposes only.

The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered capital/
registered capital directly held by the Company.

The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered capital/
registered capital indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(1)

The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, practically carry no rights
to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

The Group held 50% indirect interest in & 78 #7 1 8EJR 8 PR A &) through the 60%
direct interest held by a 83% owned subsidiary, Zhongyou Hua Dian. Therefore
the Group has control over this entity and it is considered as a subsidiary of the
Company.

The Group held 42% indirect interest in through the 50.86% direct interest held by
an 83% owned subsidiary, Zhongyou Hua Dian. Therefore the Group has control
over this entity and it is considered as a subsidiary of the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year.

China Gas Holdings Limited FEIRRIZREMR AT Financial Report 2009 B 15 &

50. T EME A RFE @
* AXERBEHT -

#  AARFEZIBEARAR GEMER HEZME
AEELL ] -

# ARARFEZIBETRA GEMER FEZME
AEELL ] -

ERBINEZRREARBRENEEFETEY
BIRRRAISEEEMBAR - EFRR - RMHHE
MR A RHEEEREBNITE o

(1) EEBRMAFMARERFE  MER LW TSR
WS BEZRAREMBRRAGEE  HFEEH
KNG IR FNERE D FEM DK 2T o

Q) AEBEEBHBEASIWER ZMEBARTHESE
FrH6% MEESEREAT HERERARES
So%REMER - Bt AEBER L EREAS EH
o TR ARARZHBAF

Q) AEEEBEBEASWERZHBARFHESE
B H50.86%2 E S A 42%MEER - Bt - A
SERILEEREZEHIE - WRE BN R Z KB
A

R R RN F AR A AR ERERES -
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